SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (PEACE RIVER NORTH)

10112 — 105 Avenue
Fort St. John, BC V1J 4S4
Telephone: (250) 262-6000

BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA BOOR

for the

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2025 @ 5:30 p.m.




Regular Agenda: December 15, 2025

Page 2

ﬂ;‘:ﬁ SCHOOLDISTRICT60PEACERIVERNORTH

— ~2024-2029 BOARD STRATEGIC PLAN SUMMARY

MISSION

STRATEGIC VISION

School District 80 is an inclusive and engaging learning
environment, where every individual feels supported to thrive.
Together, we build school communities that respect the diversity
of our communities, prioritizing collaboration, well-being,
personal development, and strong community connections.

Allstudents will graduate, crossing the stage with dignity,

purpose and options.

VALUES

Respect | Compassion | Honesty | Responsibility | Relationships
Dane giiinddnalzh |Tsainayéh | Ihe?eh | Ddahwdghelh | Ehtah wes?gh

2024-2029 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

School District 60 will

School District 60 will nurture an
engaging and productive learning
environmeant whera every
student receives

the necessary support,
rosources, and cppertunities ta

foster a welcoming and
inclusive environment
that prioritizes the well-
being, development, and
professional growth of all
employess.

thrive and succeed.

Schoel District 60 Board
and leaders will prioritize
collaboration,
accountability, and
transparency in ensuring
student-centered decision-
making.

School District 60 will provide
facilities and maintain a safe and
supportive learning environment,
appropriately equipped to
facilitate guality tesching and.
learning.

School District 60 recognizes thatwe
operate on the traditional territory of
the Dane-zaa within Treaty 8, and will
focus on building strong connections
with local Indigenous communities
and integrsting Indigenous
knowledge end culture inte learning
and the schocl community. All
Indizenous students need to feel that
they are valuad and respected.

School Ristrict G0 will
provide an early
learning and child
care envirohment that

supports a posilive
transition for children
from hame, pre- school
and day care into schools,

TOGETHER
WE LEARN



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2025
5:30 P.M.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

AGENDA
Call to Order

Acknowledgement that today’s Board Meeting is being held within the traditional territory of
the Dane Zaa and Treaty 8.

Additions to the Agenda/Acceptance of the Agenda

Presentations/Delegations

3.1 Halfway River First Nation & School District #60 Local Education Agreement 2025
(Attachment)
Helen Gilbert, Board Chair

Trustee Engagement/Celebrations

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, November 17, 2025 (pages 6-17)
51 Approval of the Minutes
5.2 Business Arising from the Minutes

(See attached Action Item List for completed and ongoing items)

Approval of Excerpts of the In Camera Board Meeting, October 20, 2025 (page 18)

Announcements and Reminders

December 22 - Christmas Vacation
January 2

January 12 COTW Meeting 2:30 p.m. Board Room

January 19 Board Meeting 5:30 p.m. Board Room

January 23/24 NIB Meeting Prince George

January 27 SUP-PAC Meetings 12:00 p.m. Board Room
(Lehmann/Scott-Moncrieff)

January 30 Prespatou Graduation  3:00 & 6:00 p.m. Prespatou School

January 30 NID (District Turnaround)

February 2 COTW Meeting 2:30 p.m. Dr. Kearney

February 16 Family Day

February 17 Tues) Board Meeting 5:30 p.m. Board Room

February 19 Indigenous Council Meeting

February 23 Board Advance 9:00a.m. — 4:00 p.m. Board Room

February 24 SUP-PAC Meetings (Snow)  12:00 p.m. Board Room

February 27 NID Day (Report Writing)




8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

Senior Staff Reports

8.1
8.2

Superintendent’s Report (page 19-20)

Secretary-Treasurer's Report (page 21)

Reports of Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting, December 1, 2025 (pages 22-24)

9.1
9.2

9.3

Approval of Minutes

Business Arising
(See attached Action Item List for completed and ongoing items)

Policy Committee

Policy 5004.2 Child Abuse Reporting Protocols

Scott-Moncrieff/

That the Board of Education approves the adoption of Policy 5004.2 Child Abuse
Reporting Protocols with the noted correction.

CARRIED.

Policy 5004 Child Abuse

Campbell/

That the Board of Education approves the deletion of Policy 5004 Child Abuse
CARRIED.

(F;olicv/5004.1 Reporting of Suspected Child Abuse & Neglect
illiss
That the Board of Education approves the deletion of Policy 5004.1 Reporting of
Suspected Child Abuse & Neglect
CARRIED.

Policy 5013 Emergency Health Response — AEDs and Naloxone Kits
Whitton/
That the Board of Education approves the adoption of Policy 5013 Emergency
Health Response — AED’s and Naloxone Kits

CARRIED.

Indigenous Education Council (IEC) Updates

Other Reports

11.1

11.2
11.3
11.4
11.5

BCSTA — Trustee Snow
a) Trustee Academy Report Out

BCPSEA — Trustee Lehmann

Board Pro-D Committee — Chair Gilbert

DPAC Report — Chair Gilbert

Northern Interior Branch Meeting (Jan 23 & 24, 2026) — Chair Gilbert

Correspondence




13.0

14.0

15.0

16.0

17.0

18.0

19.0

20.0

21.0

Unfinished Business

13.1  Community Advisory Council/Good Neighbourhood Group — OPS Site Update
(Attachment)
Helen Gilbert, Board Chair

New Business
PRNTA Update — Donna Bulmer, President

CUPE Local #4653 Update — Jennie Copeland, President

District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Report — Athena Andritz, President

Questions from the Press and Public Related to Agenda Items

Suspend Regqular Meeting & Move into In-Camera Meeting

In Camera Motions brought forward for implementation

Adjournment

kkkkkhkkhkhkhkhkhkhkkkhhkkkhhkkkk

Please Note:
Where an individual/group knows in advance they wish to address the Board, a request in writing should be
made to the Secretary-Treasurer one week in advance of the Board Meeting in accordance with Board Policy

#1003.1.

The request must indicate the subject of the presentation, any technology requirements (ie. screen, projector,
laptop use) and the estimated time required for the presentation. Presentations will be limited to a maximum of
10 minutes, unless approved otherwise.

If approval is granted, an electronic/written copy of the presentation must be provided no later than Thursday of
the week before the date of presentation.



“PROVISIONAL” MINUTES
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North)

REGULAR MEETING Monday, November 17, 2025
5:30 p.m.

Present: Helen Gilbert, Chair — Board of Education (Area 5)
Bill Snow, Vice-Chair (Area 5)
Ida Campbell, Trustee (Area 4)
Nicole Gilliss, Trustee (Area 3)
Madeleine Lehmann, Trustee (Area 1)
David Scott-Moncrieff, Trustee (Area 2)
Tom Whitton, Trustee (Area 5) (via Zoom)

Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent of Schools
Wade Hart, Assistant Superintendent
Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer

Leah Reimer, Recording Secretary

(Guests/Media)
Donna Bulmer, PRNTA President
Gwenn Bourdon

This Regular Board Meeting will be recorded and uploaded to our district website

Disclaimer: The definitive documentation and decisions of the Board are documented in the
meeting minutes

Any use of an electronic device such as a computer or cell phone is related to the business
of the meeting

The core values that guide the work of the school district are RESPECT, COMPASSION,
HONESTY, RESPONSIBILITY, and RELATIONSHIPS.

Call to Order Secretary-Treasurer, Angela Telford, called the meeting to order at 5:30
p.m.

Acknowledgement that today’s Board Meeting is being held within the traditional territory of the
Dane Zaa and Treaty 8.

Agenda
Approval of the Agenda

Motion #137-25 Scott-Moncrieff/Snow
THAT the agenda be accepted as presented with the following addition:

5.0 Presentations & Celebrations
Board Contribution to District Christmas Dinner
CARRIED.



Declaration of Conflict of Interest

The following trustees declared a “conflict of interest”:

o Trustee Campbell — daughter employed by Northern Health and a
daughter employed by School District #60 (BCPSEA — Red Zone)
. Trustee Snow — spouse is a teacher for School District #60 as well

as Trustee Snow is a member of the BCGEU with his employer
(BCPSEA — Red Zone)

. Trustee Gilbert — daughter and son-in-law are part of groups
bargained by the public sector (ie. Northern Health) (BCPSEA —
Yellow Zone)

. Trustee Scott-Moncrieff — daughter works for School District #60
(BCPSEA - Yellow Zone)

. Trustee Gilliss — not currently in conflict but may be in the spring
because daughter works for the BCGEU union

o Trustee Whitton — mother works for Northern Health (BCPSEA —

Yellow Zone)

Election of Board Officers

Election of Board Chair
The Secretary-Treasurer announced the Election of Board Chair and called
for nominations by secret ballot.

The Assistant Superintendent and Secretary-Treasurer distributed,
gathered and sorted the ballots. The Secretary-Treasurer then announced
the following nominees and asked if they would let their name stand for

Board Chair:
Nicole Gilliss Declined
Madeleine Lehmann Declined
Helen Gilbert Accepted

The Secretary-Treasurer declared Helen Gilbert the Board Chair by
acclamation.

Election of Vice-Chair
Chair Gilbert took the chair and called for nominations by secret ballot for
Vice-Chair.

The Assistant Superintendent and Secretary-Treasurer gathered and sorted
the ballots and the Board Chair announced the following nominees:

Madeleine Lehmann Accepted
Nicole Gilliss Accepted
Bill Snow Accepted

Trustees shared why they would like to let their name stand for this position.

Voting proceeded and the ballots were gathered and sorted by the
Assistant Superintendent and Secretary-Treasurer.

A tie was declared between Madeleine Lenmann and Nicole Gilliss.



Voting again proceeded and the ballots were gathered and sorted by the
Assistant Superintendent and Secretary-Treasurer.

The Board Chair declared Nicole Gilliss the Vice-Chair.
Election of Provincial Councilor Rep

The Board Chair called for nominations by secret ballot for Provincial
Councilor Rep.

Ballots were gathered and sorted by the Assistant Superintendent and
Secretary-Treasurer and the Board Chair announced the following
nominees:

Ida Campbell Declined
Madeleine Lehmann Declined
Bill Snow Accepted
David Scott-Moncrieff Declined
Helen Gilbert Declined

The Board Chair declared Trustee Snow the Provincial Councilor Rep.
by acclamation.

Election of Alternate Provincial Councilor Rep
The Board Chair called for nominations by secret ballot for Alternate
Provincial Councilor Rep.

Ballots were gathered and sorted by the Assistant Superintendent and
Secretary-Treasurer and the Board Chair announced the following
nominees:

David Scott-Moncrieff Accepted
Nicole Gilliss Declined
Ida Campbell Declined
Helen Gilbert Declined

The Board Chair declared David Scott-Moncrieff the Alternate
Provincial Councilor Rep. by acclamation.

Election of BCPSEA Rep
The Board Chair called for nominations by secret ballot for BCPSEA Rep.

Helen Gilbert, Ida Campbell, Nicole Gilliss, David Scott-Moncrieff, Bill Snow
and Thomas Whitton have declared a “conflict of interest”

Ballots were gathered and sorted by the Assistant Superintendent and
Secretary-Treasurer and the Board Chair announced the following
nominees:

Madeleine Lehmann Accepted
Nicole Gilliss Declined



The Board Chair declared Madeleine Lehmann the BCPSEA Rep. by
acclamation.

Election of Alternate BCPSEA Rep
The Board Chair called for nominations by secret ballot for Alternate
BCPSEA Rep.

Helen Gilbert, Ida Campbell, Nicole Gilliss, David Scott-Moncrieff, Bill Snow
and Thomas Whitton have declared a “conflict of interest”.

Ballots were gathered and sorted by the Assistant Superintendent and
Secretary-Treasurer and the Board Chair announced the following

nominees:
Nicole Gilliss Accepted
Helen Gilbert Accepted
Thomas Whitton Declined

Voting proceeded and the ballots were gathered and sorted by the
Assistant Superintendent and Secretary-Treasurer.

The Board Chair declared Nicole Gilliss the Alternate BCPSEA Rep.

Motion #138-25 Scott-Moncrieff/Campbell
THAT the secret paper ballots be destroyed.
CARRIED.

Other Board Duties

Audit Committee

. Audit Committee meets four times a year and needs three trustees
to attend aside from the Board Chair to achieve quorum

. Trustee Lehmann, Vice-Chair Gilliss, Trustee Snow and Trustee
Scott Moncrieff will attend. Trustee Campbell will also attend, when
available

. Trustee Lehmann will continue to chair this committee

School Liaison Reps

. Trustees had previously been asked if they would like to see any
changes

. Vice-Chair Gilliss would like to add a middle school to her portfolio.

Further discussion will take place with applicable trustees on
making that change.

Presentations/Delegations
None

Trustee Engagement/Celebrations

At this time, opportunity was given for Trustees to report on activities
undertaken and/or information of interest:



Remembrance Day Presentation (Attachment)

. Chair Gilbert shared a presentation of trustee and students’
involvement at Remembrance Day ceremonies. A big thank you
and shout out to the staff of the schools and the work they did in
schools around this special day

Trustee Campbell (Area 4)

o Liaison schools at Hallowe’en

. Remembrance Day in Taylor along with Trustee Scott-Moncrieff
and international students.

PAC Meetings

Taylor PAC craft sale

Baldonnel carnival this Friday

Phone call with MLA

Vice-Chair Gilliss (Area 3)

. Hudson’s Hope school for Hallowe’en parade
Remembrance Day activities

Met with Hudson’s Hope administrator

Went with Volleyball team to Chetwynd
Student Council meeting

Trustee Lehmann (Area 1)

) Clearview and Robert Ogilvie PACs

) Remembrance Day Ceremony in Cecil Lake

) BCPSEA Symposium online

Trustee Scott-Moncrieff (Area 2)

o COTW @ Alwin Holland — enjoyed tour with the student and
ambassadors

. Remembrance Day in Taylor with international students

. Update on construction at Wonowon School

. Spoke with most liaison administrators

Trustee Snow (Area 5)

o Volleyball elementary matches

o NPSS volleyball fundraiser where they played against alumni
teams. As well, the girls volleyball team will be going to provincial
championships at the end of November.

) Visited liaison schools

o Remembrance Day Ceremonies in Fort St. John as well as NPSS
and Bert Bowes schools
Wearing the red suit for a couple of school fundraisers
Bert Bowes — Entrepreneurial Fair

Trustee Whitton (Area 5)

o Remembrance Day Ceremony in Fort St. John

) COTW Meetings @ Alwin Holland Elementary School

. Petroleum Association Bonspiel

. Conversation with parents and those interested in running in the

next election



Chair Gilbert (Area 5)

Learning Forward Al presentation

Provincial Council as an observer

BCPSEA Symposium online

Labour Management Meeting

Board Chair Call

Remembrance Day in Hudson’s Hope

Volleyball games at Robert Ogilive and Margaret Ma Murray
schools

Taylor PAC craft sale

Band Fundraiser — looking for silent auction items

) COTW Meetings at Alwin Holland Elementary School

NEW Board Contribution to District Christmas Dinner
. Does the board want to contribute again this year? Trustee
Campbell is willing to make three door prize baskets again.
ACTION: Trustees to give any donations to the baskets to Trustee
Campbell by November 28, 2025
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting

Approval of the Minutes

Motion #139-25 Lehmann/Whitton
THAT the Regular Meeting Minutes of October 20, 2025 be adopted.
CARRIED.

Business Arising from the Minutes

The following business arose from the above noted Minutes:

. Thank you to the Superintendent for drafting the letter of support for
the Redevelopment of the UBC Med in School Psychology
Program. The letter was also captured in one of the BCSTA
Weekly emails.

Approval of Excerpts

Motion #140-25 Campbell/Scott-Moncrieff
THAT the excerpts from the September 22, 2025 In Camera Meeting
Minutes be approved and appended to these Regular Meeting Minutes.

CARRIED.
Announcements & Reminders
November 19/20 Elementary V-Ball Tournament ARYES
November 25 SUP-PAC Meetings (Snow/Scott-Moncrieff)
12:00 p.m. Board Room
November 26/27 Early Dismissal Days
November 27 SD60 Band Concert 6:00 p.m. NPCC
November 27-29 BCSTA Trustee Academy Vancouver
November 28 NID Day (Parent-Teacher Interviews)

December 1 COTW Meeting 2:30 p.m. Baldonnel



December 4
December 6
December 11
December 15
December 22 -
January 2
January 12
January 19
January 27

January 30

Senior Staff Reports

Motion #141-25

Motion #142-25

Motion #143-25

NPAA Christmas Party Northern Grand

District Christmas Dinner/Dance Pomeroy Hotel
IEC Council Meeting

Board Meeting 5:30 p.m. Board Room
Christmas Vacation

COTW Meeting 2:30 p.m. Board Room
Board Meeting 5:30 p.m. Board Room
SUP-PAC Meetings 12:00 p.m. Board Room

(Lehmann/Scott-Moncrieff)
NID (District Turnaround)

Superintendent’s Report
A written and electronic report was presented. Topics discussed and
reported included:

Human Resources Summary for Teachers & AO’s
. For information purposes

Superintendent’s Report
https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2025/11/13/superintendents-report-november-2025/

. For information purposes

Out-of-District Field Trips
. See motion below

Posts of Responsibility
o See motion below

Snow/Whitton
THAT the Board accept the Superintendent’s Report with the exception of
Out-of-District Field Trips and Posts of Responsibility.

CARRIED.

Gilliss/Lehmann
THAT the Board approves the Out-of-District Field Trips as presented.
CARRIED.

Scott-Moncrieff/Snow
THAT the Board approves the Posts of Responsibility as presented.
CARRIED.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report
A written report was presented. Topics discussed and reported included:

Finance Update to October 31, 2025

. For information purposes

. $179,494 Miscellaneous Revenue includes proceeds from the
school bus that was written off; an option to “buy back” afterwards
was not given.


https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2025/11/13/superintendents-report-november-2025/

Motion #144-25

2025-2026 School District #60 Enrolment — Actual vs. Projected

. Down 27 in brick-and-mortar enrolment and 13.6 in online learning
resulting in a $524,000 decrease in funding based on the brick-and-
mortar numbers

° There are no obvious trends as to the decreases

. In January, when ministry updates the enrolment in all schools,
including Independent Schools, we can access additional
information

Human Resources Support Staff Summary
. For information purposes

Scott-Moncrieff/Whitton
THAT the Board accept the Secretary-Treasurer’'s Report.
CARRIED.

Reports of Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting

Motion #145-25

Approval of the Minutes — November 3, 2025

Gilliss/Whitton
THAT the Board accept the Regular Committee of the Whole minutes of
November 17, 2025 and its recommendations

CARRIED.

Business Arising from the Minutes
The following business arose from the above noted Minutes:

STARS Air Ambulance Subscription

Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer

. Directly registered so when an emergency does arise, they have all
of our information and will deploy services quickly, however it
doesn’t provide us with preferential treatment.

o Service for staff is provided by the district for locations more than
20 minutes away from major hospitals (ie. Buick Creek, Clearview,
Upper Halfway, and Wonowon). Hudson’s Hope and Camp
Cameron have now been added.

. Cost for the service is $200 per site per year

Student Voice Follow-Up

. It was noted, that trustees need to take turns being prepared to
answer any questions that the students may have; preferably a
trustee that is not a liaison at the school where the meeting is
taking place to allow them to get to know other trustees better.

o Trustee Scott-Moncrieff will be ready for the December 1, 2025
COTW Meeting at Baldonnel School

Policy Committee

Policy 5004.2 Child Abuse Reporting Protocols

o An edit around duplication of wording was noted under Guidelines
and Principles



Motion #146-25 Scott-Moncrieff
That the Board of Education issue a Notice of Motion for the adoption of
Policy 5004.2 Child Abuse Reporting Protocols w(i%h the noted correction.
ARRIED.

Policy 5004 Child Abuse
Motion #147-25 Campbell/
That the Board of Education issue a Notice of Motion for the deletion of
Policy 5004 Child Abuse
CARRIED.

Policy 5004.1 Reporting of Suspected Child Abuse & Neglect

Motion #148-25 Gilliss/
That the Board of Education issue a Notice of Motion for the deletion of
Policy 5004.1 Reporting of Suspected Child AbusCeA8é gtlagll:t)act

Policy 5003 Emergency Health Response — AEDs and Naloxone Kits
Motion #149-25 Whitton/

That the Board of Education issue a Notice of Motion for the adoption of

Policy 5003 Emergency Health Response — AED’Cs :g?{ INE%oxone Kits

ACTION: Policies 5004, 5004.1, 5004.2 and 5003 to be sent out for Notice
of Motion with the noted change as well as communication around the
consolidation of two policies into one.

Indigenous Education Council (IEC) Updates
o Next meeting is December 11, 2025
e A Pro-D presentation was made on the Indigenous Cultural Safety
Manual prior to this meeting

Other Reports
BCSTA
. Provincial Council — Chair Gilbert attended as an observer. There
was some duplication of information with the call with the Branch
President and the Board Chair call.

o Information around AGM Processes & Protocols was
brought to the November 3, 2025 Discussion Topics

o) The Legislation Committee is looking at reviewing BCSTA'’s
policies

o Provincial Council meeting information is available on the

BCSTA Portal, including extensive reports from the
President and CEO

Board Chair Call

. The exploration of regional representation was a motion that was
made at AGM; they are in the process of putting together an
extensive report that will come back to membership. Did a historic
of who has served as directors and presidents of BCSTA...there
was a vision that it has been dominated by metro districts which
has proved to not be the case; the branch with most representation
is Thompson-Okanagan.

. In all communication, the BCSTA is looking at aligning their
operational capacity and being more focused




Correspondence

Unfinished Business

minutes:

New Business

1. Public education matters — included in a lot of motions...an
increase in non-targeted funds (eg. Feeding Futures)

2. Building public education champions (eg. Pro-D through
Trustee Academy and the upcoming Leadership Series)

3. You matter in education with emphasis on role of Boards

BCPSEA

. AGM is coming up in January and looking for nominations to
replace Linda Martens who will not be letting her name stand

. Trustee Lehmann is considering running, with the nomination

package submission deadline of December 2, 2025

Board Pro-D Committee

) An Indigenous Cultural Safety Manual Pro-D Session took place
previous to today’s Board Meetings

. Trustees to let Board Chair know of any other Pro-D they’d like to
see

French Advisory Committee (FAC)
. None

Letter of Support for the Redevelopment of the UBC M Ed in School
Psychology Program
. For information purposes

The following unfinished business arose from the previous meeting

OPS Site Update
o The site is currently on pace for an opening in spring of 2026; right
now they are using a tent that is attached to one of the church sites

. Discussion around only getting five visits and would that increase
once the building is open
. Within the community, there is a petition circulating and they had

hoped to meet with Northern Health, but that will not be happening

None

PRNTA Update — Donna Bulmer, President

o Revealed her “Kids Matter Teacher’s Care” red t-shirt; we are here
in solidarity with our bargaining team as well as the BCPSEA
bargaining team who are all working together down in Vancouver.
“BC Red for Ed” involves all things related to the work the
bargaining teams are doing.

. Happy to announce that all teaching positions in our district are
filled at this time

) TTOC’s coverage - when we have enough TTOC's, the teachers



can be sick without stress. We can also offer union rep training
which we will be having on Friday with approximately 15 teachers
attending.

. Annual Board Elections - during the voting processes, what would
happen if all trustees declined to let their name stand? Vice-Chair
Gilliss - as trustees, we wouldn’t allow that to happen, someone
would step up; we can’t run with vacancies in our assignments.

. When the Board Chair states at the beginning of the meeting “any
use of an electronic device such as a computer or cell phone is
related to the business of the meeting”, is that for guests/observers
as well? Chair Gilbert — it is for trustees and district staff, so the
public knows that they are focused on the matters related to the
meeting.

CUPE Local #4653 Update — Jennie Copeland, President

No report, not present

District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Report — Athena Andritz, President

No report, not present

Questions from Press/Public

At this time, opportunity was given for questions from the press

Gwenn Bourdon — Remembrance Day Ceremonies — appreciate the
trustees engagement here; they have been well attended. There were
some upset seeing an armed RCMP officer on top of the Board Office
building.

Chair Gilbert, - when crowds of a certain size are gathered for the
ceremony, the RCMP request to use our roof for coverage.
Trustee Campbell — started after 9/11. The arena in Taylor has one as well.

Gwenn Bourdon — Supreme Courts are no longer allowing poppies to be
worn in court rooms as it could sway public opinion. It is at the judge’s
discretion

Gwenn Bourdon — asking for more clarification on the affiliation of the
request for support made by the UBC Med in School Psychology Program.
Chair Gilbert — there are two different bodies...we’re interested in a
program that would allow us to work on supporting local training for a
school psychologist. We have had a shortage around the province for some
time. They are looking to change some of the restrictions on where, when
and how they are offering their program that would allow them to have
candidates in our district.

Suspension & Move into In-Camera Meeting

Motion #150-25

Snow/Whitton
THAT the Board suspend the Regular Meeting and move into the In-
Camera Meeting.

CARRIED.



Motion #151-25 Snow/Campbell
THAT the Board resume the Regular Meeting and those Motions made In
Camera be brought forward for implementation.

CARRIED.
Adjournment
Motion #152-25 Snow/Lehmann
THAT the meeting be adjourned. (8:30 p.m.)
HELEN GILBERT, CHAIR, ANGELA TELFORD,

BOARD OF EDUCATION SECRETARY-TREASURER



EXCERPTS
FROM THE OCTOBER 20, 2025
“IN CAMERA” MEETING MINUTES

The meeting was called to order and the In-camera Meeting Minutes, September 22, 2025
were read and adopted.

Business Arising
e None

Superintendent’s Report
Items discussed and reported included:
° Personnel Issue

Secretary-Treasurer’'s Report
Items discussed and reported included:

o District Joint Health & Safety Committee Meeting Minutes — October 9, 2025
Other Reports

e BCSTA

e BCPSEA

e COTW Discussion Topics

Correspondence

e None

Unfinished Business
e None

New Business
e None




Regular Agenda: December 15, 2025 Page 19

REGULAR MEETING
REPORT TO THE
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Monday, December 15, 2025

Human Resources

1. Human Resources Summary Report for Teachers

HR Summary Report for Teachers & AO's - 2025/2026

for the period of November 14 to December 11, 2025

Personnel Assignments Leaves of Admin Appointments Resignations Reports
Absence /Retirements on
Teachers
New 1 1 1
assignments
Changes to 4 10
existing
Return from 1
leave
Payout prep 2
Education
1. Superintendent’s Report
https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2025/12/11/superintendents-report-
december-2025/

2. SD60 Artificial Intelligence Guidelines (Aftachment)
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education approve the overarching
guidelines for Artificial Intelligence use in School District 60.

3. Community Coaches (Aftachment)
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education approve the attached
Community Coaches as presented

4. Out-of-District Field Trips (Attachment)
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education approve the attached Out-of-
District Field Trips as presented

5. Posts of Responsibility (Attachment)
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education approve the attached Posts of
Responsibility as presented


https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2025/12/11/superintendents-report-december-2025/
https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2025/12/11/superintendents-report-december-2025/

Regular Agenda: December 15, 2025

Operations

1. Security Issues in Schools

Respectfully submitted,

Stephen Petrucci, EAD
Superintendent of Schools

Page 20



Regular Agenda: December 15, 2025 Page 21

Operations

1. Finance Update to November 30, 2025 (Attachment)

Human Resources

1. Human Resources Support Staff Summary

Human Resources Summary Report for Support Staff
For period of November 14th, 2025, to December 11th, 2025

Personnel Leaves of Resignations
Assignments Absence

New assignments 8 1 2
Changes to existing 6
Return from leave
Layoff
Retirements 1

Termination

Angela Telford,
Secretary-Treasurer



Regular Agenda: December 15, 2025 Page 22

N

Present: Helen Gilbert, Chair, Board of Education
Nicole Gilliss, Vice Chair
Ida Campbell, Trustee

Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent
Wade Hart, Assistant Superintendent
Jarrod Bell, Director of Instruction
Angela Telford, Secretary Treasurer
Leah Reimer, Executive Assistant

Media/Guests:
Candace Andres, Baldonnel Parent

Regrets: Madeleine Lehmann, Trustee
David Scott-Moncrieff, Trustee
Bill Snow, Trustee
Thomas Whitton, Trustee

Education Update
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent

Framework Presentations

Baldonnel Elementary School (Aftachment)

Craig Brownlee, Administrator

o Mr. Brownlee presented Baldonnel's framework and answered questions from the
Board and District Staff

Student Voice (Attachment)
o Two students were in attendance and provided feedback relating to the Student
Voice questions provided by the Board

FESL Review
Anne Roberts Young Elementary School
o They have 15 divisions this year; that is up from 13 divisions. They are accepting



O
O

O

variances, but don’t have a lot of space. They have capacity for 21 divisions
without losing their multi purpose spaces. They’ve seen more variance requests in
than out

We have the summary of the data, which is appreciated. Seeing the actual data is
important though and a link was provided which is appreciated

SEL — would be nice to see the tools their using

MDI is referenced and is linked to student voice. This allows us to see the
commonalities and challenges between schools

Fulsome and robust communication background

North Peace Secondary School

O

Department by department smart set adds clarity to the picture of the school

o Having those smart goals by department, did it contribute to more alignment
within the department as sometimes that could lead to better progress?

In their Planning Day, they set the stage using Ministry direction, the District's FESL

and the Board’s Strategic Plan

A variety of ways the Learning Support Fund is being used (see page 15)

Like the breakout of behavior and suspension data...vaping is still a significant

issue they are dealing with

Attendance concerns...is this percentage missed? Any record of non-attendance?

It is noted that the number one behavior concern is non-attending.

A very comprehensive document and visual data; lots to think about it

They have done a lot of work on their own surveys that they feel is relevant for

moving them forward; they work at getting everyone to participate

Discussion followed around diversity in individual site’s FESLs (eg. overarching
numeracy goal, but diversity within that for each site and what is priority to them)

Governance

Board Meeting Follow Up Questions/Discussion
Helen Gilbert, Board Chair

O

None

Operations

Operations Report (Aftachment)
Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer

O

Question about the discoloration of the roof in the Baldonnel portable we’re meeting
in. There are roof leaks this year...a work order has gone in

NPSS - they have replaced the greenhouse glass with other material; it hasn’t been
used as a greenhouse for a long time, it's been used for storage

School construction projects are both completing trades on the 22", but now it’s the
occupancy wait. The inspectors wait for the signoffs to go the architects.

In follow-up to the November 12 Labour Management meeting concern brought
forward around garbage disposal, safety procedures have been created

Chair Gilbert — at Academy, the lawyer in one of the presentations spoke about an



increase in mental health/wellness in the workplace complaints. Our district’s flow
chart was referenced. Wade — we haven’t seen an increase, but we do get
complaints and we follow up using the process.

Transportation parts inventory - with new staff comes new vision; they are taking
inventory of what we have on hand and updating it to the needs of our current fleet
Thank you to the Transportation Department for their coordination of buses for a
number of schools to attend the Para Olympics event in Dawson Creek.



Meeting Date
Oct 4/21
Nov 4/24
Feb 18/25
Apr 14/25

Oct 20/25
Nov 3/25
Nov 3/25
Nov 17/25

June 21/24
June 21/24
Apr 14/25
May 20/25
Apr 14/25
9/22/2025
9/22/2025
Oct 20/25
Oct 20/25
Oct 6/25
Jan 13/25
Oct 20/25
Nov 3/25
May 20/25

Meeting
COTW
COTW
Board
Board

Board
COTW
COoTW
Board

Board
Board
Board
Board
Board
Board
Board
Board
Board
COTW
COTW
Board
COTW
Board

Topic
Facilities Review - FCI Update
Policy Committee Meeting
Superintendent's Report
Capital Plan Bylaw

Indigenous Education Council (IEC)
Connection w/ Local Governments
Operations Report

Policy Committee Meeting

Correspondence

Unfinished Business

New Business

Policy Committee Meeting

Other Reports - BCSTA
Superintendent's Report
Superintendent's Report
Correspondence - BCASP

New Business - Board Annual Plan
Framework Presentations (Student Voice)
Operations Report

New Business - School Liaison Reps
Operations Report

Superintendent's Report

Action Item/Recommendation
Provide more detailed information in regards to the FCI report
Trustees to review Policy Summary and bring foward policies they see need reviewing
Discussion around recognition of community donations for a future meeting
Provide further details to the board re: SSAC

Trustee Campbell to bring a full report to a future Board Meeting

Helen to look into further & bring back to a future meeting

Look into having Facilities Dept staff come a couple times a year to report to the Board
Notice of Motion for Policies 5004, 5004.1, 5004.2 with edit & amalgamation note

Seamless BASC Request Letter - will send a response

Early Childhood Funding Letter

Bring back Finance Standing Committee presentation to a future meeting

Send out Policies 5009 & 8005 & bring back to Sept 22 Board Mtg for adoption
Improving Student Outcomes Report - bring back to a future meeting for discussion
Cameron Lake Annual Report - Forward report to WMFN

Framework Summary Report Review & Approval - Confirm additional 24 spaces (page 27)

Compose a draft letter and send to Board Chair for review

Add to Nov 3 COTW Agenda re: connecting with local governments

Administrator to compile responses to Student Voice & forward

Look into the future of CM Finch Rink

Add to Nov 17 Regular Agenda to finalize

District Staff to look into details around STARS Air Ambulance subscription

Bring back an update re: the UBC Dental Health Project @ Taylor & Wonowon schools

Assigned to:
Angela

Angela
Angela

Ida
Helen
Angela
Leah

Helen
Helen
Helen
Leah
Helen
Helen
Stephen
Stephen
Helen
Leah
Angela
Leah
Angela
Stephen

Unfinished
Business

X

Ongoing

X

X

Completed

X
X
Sept 22/25
Sept 22/25
Oct 6/25
X
X
X
Nov 3/25
Ongoing
X
X
Nov 17/25
X



10/27/25, B:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Does

LOCAL EDUCATION AGREEMENT 2025
Collaborating for the Future
The Halfway River First Nation

Where Knowledge is Power

and
School District No. 60

Where Together We Learn
On the Traditional Territory of the Dane Zaa




10/27/25, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2(25_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

Je aa haanach’e

We live and learn on the traditional territory of the Dane-zaa, within Treaty 8.
INTRODUCTION

The negotiation and adoption of a Local Education Agreement {LEA) provides a significant
opportunity for Halfway First Nation and the Peace River North Board of Education to focus
attention on improving educational outcomes for First Nations Students and on developing the
relationship necessary to accomplish that mutual goal.

The purpose of this Local Education Agreement is to establish shared and individual
responsibilities in the education of our students from the Halfway River First Nation. Both
parties will reconfirm their unwavering commitment to helping First Nations Students reach
their highest potential. Tha terms of this Local Education Agreement reflect the BC Tripartite
Education Agreement between Canada, British Columbia, and the First Nations Education
Steering Committee to support First Nations Student success.

~hared Valugs-

*
Happiness
‘k L"-, S ﬁowler;ﬁ;
kcspumibiliq : Tiadional &
/ : WModem
5 x
Respect Lcarning .
/ 3 . ' Resﬂlcncy
#7 ~" " Co—snu-uraﬁon :‘k N A 5
l\ h Leaaership 7 | -~
] / =
4 . »



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HREFN LEA 2025 _10 be sigped.docx - Google Docs

\ 4 Halfway River First Nation
/ }' = . AND
"“ “ “ bﬂy School District No. 60

Local Education Agreement 2020

VISION
gelieving in the success of each student from the Halfway River First Nation,

school District No. 60 & the Halfway River First Nation Community will work
together to ensure that alf are thriving on their chosen path. Students will reach
their greatest potential, graduating as happy, healthy, skilled, confident young
adults ready for post-secondary education, workplace training and employment,
proud of their traditions and culture.

MISSION
We will work together to support our students from HRFN to be successful, happy

and engaged at all levels of their education from Kindergarten to Graduation.

We will create classroom environments that promote safe spaces for all children
to belong, to be seen and to be heard. Classrooms where children may make
mistakes or ask for help, understanding that mistakes are simply opportunities to

learn more.

As they leave our supported school system, students will understand their first
steps toward independence as a healthy, competent young adult, excited about

the future.



TRy rawaiead pEdiEs L ghy
LU N

i 1p L P NS O UOMHERM S Waiiar] YARET) 2R

LN IR PTT ATIBRTE G U] aid | Lmd vy L
. FITEY AL B3 N E LT SN F pur | oo e AW

Ty

At Agieelog Toprr 1) (Udeg w2 pEv R 0 g

AT W T AN B U Ees oG s umresd 20d purmg e

. A1 ME 432 4 AR) (TR0 0T VAP0 LIRSS 1] | S0 Avu )
T g ViR MEEy A A o BTuen pmsty s s |

SEIRU SRS g s

AR I N 3o Uopig T G ANUH CowtTL v e stagns
R T A T T FTeR T

. e en ea) Licwig ¥oi d3) e par o gy o
T XAETUE I TURTIU AT e (ER R Ll gy,

rulifwTeere.g pre ST e v o om e
1IN 2100 siradaier o) A mEnAS Ly Yrs o oy patuioniue
. A ErE L] SO0 ) A L EE3 ) rpm e g S Ve

RIS
. FIOADUIL |2 f b3 0nt pare vl 2180 gt 'y un e Ha Dngormur pac
o 3= WY RVL TR A MBI

Lo LB CRLEL BNF T TR AT TRy TEE AT L Y ) P
pawapis el o peagaanghing pe sgridray pd e X.é.._ﬁ_x 5

N Ja71y Aomfipy

. 0932810 [cous

T

vjpuosiapun idjay
10/ 450 10 sayoyut ay0uT ADUs LRI 220M sa00ds 'Piosy
34 01 pUD V23S 8¢ 0 ‘Buolag a3 vasmIys AD Jof saanid afos

puD Eyufou) 230)ty10m "BOUDINTR SIDPUOIDS-150
dof Apoai synpo Bunod ‘Juapyuos ‘pajiys ‘Ayyoay
‘Addoy sp Buppnprib Yoguaiec 1s2j02.0 Kay)

R FE T
TEEEIET e ST W 1 R
LS LYHATED [2ELL RELIPYe ALt 0 S o

QU UHTE TN 1t A e A
LR d

WAL EET A4 A narap W ey rhan s e B

Iy, 2 HRER e e nley GORME 0 Sy A0 ¢

Y Arwg ey 18 Pt B B A 4j 4 e rsaetse

TR DA LGAITIRA LR Lk 140 40 ST s gy

R densalil o gLk

LIE BISUY FRLIE0 Pt un s e Ay
B35t B8 ILET I USPrE I It B g ERDTY
SEARY I L SR LR N ez L ) ay)

LRI

[T ] am

IR GIRPY 1A ) [ 2 de T bogEeEn 3y
P USR] £ vy Lok U3 = pd tremili L

P a.u %
.....\ _.....wn
uognuazay Gy 0

3joikatd JOU) SJUFUIOHALD WIDISERII HfO5 2300 [[iwWh A Y3tk i SIVSEHNS “4I0d uasoys iyl uo Bupaug
"uonoNpRIR 0F UIMOIAENLE wosf wolaonps  3/p (10 10y 3Insti2 03 13yIIBOY YoM mm dyunwwron

4213 Jo sjena; o 18 pabaiue pup Adaoy Ynfssaoans ag
01 NAYH Wouf sjuapms Jno 1oddns 01 Ja41a50) Yiom [ agy
HOAsEiy

Aayl JEWD oS ‘Uonel 1527 JaAY AzMI|BH S41 WO USIPIILD JNO JO HBUH
: E.%E., h!%o 0] _urmtoh_uu au.m_.m_..woue_ a& §..m.o Bl E_w..m Ecu o

‘UOISSNISI0

101 J9U123 0] YSIAL OD5 10 N-4HH PIDOYS USYD 2/0W JURaaLL 10,
55300.d B Ui iead sad S5LUN0 £ 1509) i sdupaaw pajrpayds Aeindlay «

‘$3UBPris IO ..un* SUOJS|20D
[EUOLEI"PS 3XEWU 0] LOREW.OJU pue sEap) Jo Bupeys Inpdadses 'Uaad) «
NING 341 104 BUROIUNUINIOS DRD DUYBI0GUIC

Aauinof |euoueanpa Jiay) inoydnosy) jeaualod 15oLwIn oy Ieal Aew “ ﬁ -n

0202 V311 09 114ISIG 190435 1§ VouON 353 ssjy Aomjjo g,

B 1IS)0 JOONIS 21 USLDN Jas il Aomior
woJf yuapnys 303 fo ssaxons 2y uy buma)ag
ez, ARU
1adsay
Ayqisuodsay/diysopoas
HORDIFIMLLIDY
Butinayabpamouy
ssavddoy

FINTY MINYHT

N7 a0 2 proud Mg
Jova & du1ap s vibaseas 1 il Leadiiny

RULELR A TR RETTTE TR 5 ET Y I )
ey 10 k1o n AT 03T 21 M sareaad
S Mgy

APAF T T Ery Sana s LU S

U AILS 3w AL 1|1y At 2reg hne Sy
NERTIFPE 2 A3 |7 LS RGNS SI3d0n1 a1
R TAAL S ATE TLT PR TER I

TR ET DEN BUE Do WA LD TRy AT
RIL LS R PR e b direuy
“igna i par itep SUEL UM

98] Paw g7, AR Puzg 11 U1 00T LA}
ANEDIEE TR B T AL T

LT p

LrPua g g3 drare 2 mieoed Lt-g W rod oo
EUE L= BT FESTSETR T Y

FIF A ipmn mg paeeie o PR R dor

-

AL garmddr

FRUSERITES LT FDE FANL WAL W 2 1

IS MMANNE L WROPPSS ATRTN LA AN ATIRRT | 1L

wopnaInpy
Ayrend i
5320 NS R
nsany N
AUnUWWo?

7 ALUB; 01 pa1IEULD) OsIE
Inq Auesys Ayenpls pul Sujeg @
Bau3ysisad
AR, SauR))sey @
DUIDLUC) @
MBS 1A 30ead "Hutwes)
w3 ung Aof “esauddey @
SIUUBARN OB
ut apud U mreds
& sei) JuoAlana ‘seauasayp
anjea ;ApLep| Bucas @
Wawdg|dwa 'sapes; ‘uogesnpa
Mirpuasas-ysod [pooyynpe
4 sdays Mau By puEIsIRpUN 4
[enlds
“EjuF | eysAyd iyleay pooh 4
$/20d piemo) asodint M ROM
suondn g ANuRp s stenpeln @

3YI7 SY0O7 $5329NS IOYM

WY 0T8 “SE/LTOT

SI0(T 3[8000) - ¥oop'PauBis oq 07 CZ07 V1 NIMH



10/27/25,3:06 PM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Googie Docs

- ey
SRR Ron § .

Our Dreams for the Children of the Halfway River First Nation are:

My dream is that each child of our nation becornes a productive, accomplished, responsible, graduated

adult, at peace in their heart.
~ Joyce Audit, Halfway River First Nation Education Counselor

My drearn for children of our nation is to succeed at any endeavor they set their goals to. Reuch for the

stars and love what life path they take.
~ Kimberley Field, Halfway River First Nation Education Coordinator

We dream of a future where the children of Holfway River thrive with wisdom, strength, and endless
possibilities, guided by our traditions and community spirit.
~ Blesson Joseph, Halfway River First Nation, Band Manager

My dream for Halfway River First Nation students is to have thern achieve their holistic journey to the
best of their ability. To understand “education is the key to unlocking their future” and becoming the best
they can be for themselves, their community and the world!

~ pat Jansen, District Principal, Indigenous Education Center

My dream for the children of Helfway River First Nation is that they graduate with everything needed to
contribute to heolth and happiness and that of others. The time spent in our schools should help
students build the strengths needed for the success they seek.

~ Helen Gilbert, School District No. 60, Trustee {Board Chair)

My hope for Halfway River First Nation students is that their individual stories are honoured and that
they continue to have the opportunity to shape their own life path with the support of parents,
community, peers and educators.

~ Carleen Andrews, Director of instruction, Scheol District No. 60

You are the author of your own life story.
You can stort a new chapter anytime you
choose.




10127425, 8:20 AM

WH

A,

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day of , 2025

shall be effective from the 1% day of , 2025,

BETWEEN:

THE HALFWAY RIVER FIRST NATION
AND:
THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60

EREAS

On July 1, 2018, the Province of British Colurnbia, the Government of Canada and the First Matlons
Education Steering Committee entered into the BC Tripartite Education Agreement (“BCTEA”),
agreeing to work together to make systemic shifts to support successful educational autcomes of all
First Nation Students, regardless of where they live or are enrolled in schoo! in British Columbia,
through the provision of high quality and culturzlly relevant elementary and secondary educational
programs and services, and supported by funding that is responsive to unigue needs of First Nation
Students, First Nation $chools and communities.

The parties to the BCTEA recognize Local Education Agreements {“LEAs") as an integral parl of Lhe
delivery of education services to First Nation students attending BC Schools, as they are an
important mechanism for building relationships between First Nation communities and boards of
education and schools to support improved First Nation student outcomes.

The Parties recognize that the signing of this LEA is a step consistent with the Province of British
Columbia's commitment to adopting and implementing the United Nations Declaration on the Rights
of Indigenous People (the “UN Declaration”) and the Truth and Reconciliation Commission {TRC) Calls
to Action for reconciliation. In addition, the Parties agree that this approach intends to follow British
Columbia’s Draft Principles that Guide the Province of British Columbia’s Relationship with
Indigenous Peoples.

The Board has the authority, under section 86 (3) of the Schoof Act, to enter into agreements with a
Council of a Band ss defined in the fadaral indien Act, RSC, c. 1-5, or the councdil af an Indian band
established by another Act of the government of Canada, with respect to the education of First
Nations Students.

The First Nation, pursuant to its inherent jurisdiction aver educational matters, has the authority and
responsibility for the education of First Nation Students and desires to ensure its students all have
access to, and receive, quality education that is respectful and reflective of their unique culture and
history.



1027425, 8:20 AM

HREN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

F. The Parties agree that the principals, teachers and other staff in BC Public Schools have a central and

important role to play in the provision of guality education programs and setvices and in the
implementation and effectiveness of a LEA.

G. The Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to set out the terms and conditions regarding the

purchase of education services by the First Nation from the Board for the First Nation’s Students.

THEREFORE the Parties agree as follows:

1.0

1.1

20

2.1

PURPOSE
The Parties agree that the purposes of this Agreement are to:

a) Confirm the mutual commitment of the Parties, and acknowledge the important role of
Schools, to build a positive, effective, collaborative and constructive relationship to improve
the First Nation’s Students’ educational outcomes and achieve high levels of First Nation
Student success, graduation and transition to post-secondary education and training, or
employment;

b) Set out the roles and responsibilities of the Parties and School(s) to meet the purposes and
objectives of this Agreement, consistent with the BCTEA; and

¢} Serve as a core shared accountability mechanism for both the First Nation and the Board
regarding the education of First Nations Students in the School District.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The Parties will be guided by the following principles:
First Nations’ Central Role in First Nations Education

a) Indigenous families and communities have the right to retain shared responsibifity for the
upbringing, training, education and well-being of their children, consistent with the rights of
the child, and Indigenous peoples have the right to open and respectful communication with
the school district for the educational benefit of their children.

b) Halfway River First Nation will encourage, help to advise and support schools and
departments in offering opportunities for learning the languages of the territory and
appropriate cultural methods of teaching and learning. HRFN prefers to undertake their own
traditional teachings while encouraging the schoal district to provide general crafts and
stories without a spiritual nature. HRFN is currently exploring the how to offer some
language development onsite at the HRFN Education Center,



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Goegle Docs

“c) Together ~with the ~Schiio]l Distict, “Halfway River First Nation hds control of ~and
decision-making responsibility for the education of the children of their community and will
enter into dialogue with School District No. 60 about areas going well and about areas

requiring further attention or focus.

d) Halfway River First Nation has a central role in the education of their students, regardless of
where they attend school.

Eirst Nation Students Access to Quality Education

e) The Halfway River First Nation Students, at all levels of education, must have access to
educational oppartunities that:

i.  arestructured to support the growth, safety and unique needs of each student;
ii. offer groupings within schoois and ciassracms that promote a sense of beionging and
inelusian;
iii.  offar multiple opportunities for open communication so HRFN Students may find their
‘voice’ and feel welcome to share their ideas and thoughts;
iv.  enhsure that they are contident in their selt-identity, their families, their communities and
traditional values, languages and cultures;
v.  support transitions at all levels of education:
i. first time entry at anv grade |level from the HRFN Community
iil. movement from elementary school to middle school
ifi. movement from middle school to secondary school
iv. secondary school to life after Grade 12 {access/customize process already in
place - i.e. Learning lourneys, myBlueprint and Capstone Project)
vi,  give HRFN Students the skills they need to thrive in contemporary society, including 21st
century technological skills;
vii.  prepare them to access any opportunities they choose for higher learning, employment
and life choices; and
viii.  support HRFN Students to develop a strong identity, proud of their heritage.

Reconciliation & Collaboration in First Nation Education

f) First Nations education in British Columbia is highly complex, engaging federal, provincial
and First Nation authorities, roles and responsibilities and, therefore, requiring collaboration
and cooperation to ensure that all First Nation Students are supported to achieve successful
education cutcomes.

g) The gap in educational outcomes between First Nation Students and non-First Nation
students is a persisting legacy of colonizlism, and concerted efforts and proactive measures
are required to eliminate this gap and contribute to reconciliation in education.

h) The Parties have a shared interest and priority in supporting excellence in First Natians
education, including supporting First Nation Students to fulfill their educational potential by
having access te and receiving quality education that is respectful and reflective of their
unique culture and history.



1027425, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

i) Strong, effective and inclusive educational systems provide a fundamental opportunity for
building relationships and advancing reconciliation batween the Crown and First Nations, as
expressed in the TRC’s Calls to Action and the UN Declaration.

j} CQuality First Nations education includes standards, programs, services, school supports and
investments that provide appropriate tools and resources aimed at achieving successful First
Nation Student outcomes and achievements, while addressing their unique needs.

k) Curriculum, materials and resources will meaningfully reflect the First Nations' culture,
values, language and traditions, as outlined in all curriculum materials in the revised BC
Curriculum advised by the First Nations Education Steering Committee {FNESC). At some
point in the year, each classroom will offer experiential learning opportunities as Halfway
River First Nation Students regularly participate in ‘hands on’ learning to acquire skills taught
by their Elders. it is expected that experiential teaching will increase chances of school
success for HREN Students, should it be encouraged in school district classrooms.

) LEAs are an important mechanism to faciiitate relationship-building, from negotiation
through to ongoing implementation.

m) The standards set by the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples
apply to First Nations education.

n) The Truth and Reconciliation Commission’s Calis to Action set out a framewark for
reconciliation, including with regard to First Nations education, that must inform the
relationships and coliaboration between First Nations, the Province and boards of education.

Parental Choice

The BC $choal Act sets out a process for a First Nations to designate which schoal First Nation 3
students living on community, on self-governing First Nation lands or Treaty lands are entitled to
attend. The Act acknowledges the importance of providing educational opportunities that align
with the preferences and needs of HRFN students and families. HRFN and the School Board will
work towards establishing a specific date by which HRFN will designate their preferred school.
It is important to note this designation is optional and does not impact exjsting school choice
Arrangements HRFN parents/guardians had made with the hoard of education (BC School Act)

o) Parents have the right to decide where their children will be enrolled ta receive the benefit
of an education program and School District No. 60 is dedicated to providing the best
possible educational placement for the students from The Halfway First Nation community.

The following process will occur if there is an issue with @ HRFN Student’s placement:

a. The child's parent, guardian or representative from the HRFN community will contact
the School District executive staff member responsible for Indigenous Education, to
describe the issue and to request a meeting.

b. A mutually convenient date and place will be set for a meeting to occur, with zll
parties bringing their thoughts and ideas to the table.



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

3.0

31

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

c. School District No, 60 will attempt to provide solutions to the placement situation
and-may beable to offer alternatives that tite HRFN-member may wish to consider.

d. School District No. 60 is committed to the understanding that sometimes alternative
class and schoal placements may be required for the success of the child and will
investigate all class availability in the current school and other schools, as requested.

First Nation Student Safety

p) Halfway First Nation Students have 3 right to feel safe at school, including safety from racism
{students and staff), indifference, bias, marginalization, bullying and stereotyping.

The district is committed to enhancing cultural competency, specifically addressing the needs
of the HRFN community. To this end, we will implement continuous cultural competency
and anti-racism training for all educators, administrators, trustees, and staff. This ongolng
training wiil cover Indigencus history, cuiture, and contemporary issues, with a focus on
recognizing and addressing biases and privilege. Bv fostering a deeper understanding and
respect for Indigenous perspectives, we aim to create a mare inclusive and equitable
educational environment for HRFN students.

Shared Accountability and Data-Sharing

g} LEAs are more than a mere financial transaction and serve as a core shared accountability
mechanism for both Halfway River First Nation and Schoo! District No. 60 regarding First
Nations education in our district.

r) Timely and relevant data is required to inform decision-making to support First Mation
Students. The executive staff member, responsible for Indigenous Education, wiil organize
no less than 3 informational meetings per year with the Halfway River First Nations
representatives to share relevant data regarding academic achievement, attendance and
special education enrolment.

s) School District Ng. 60 will consistently use the SD60 Assessment Dashboard to monitor the
progress of all Halfway First Mation Students in an attempt to be proactive, both in
celebrating successes and in intervening when there are struggles.

RESPONSIBILITIES & CONVIMITMENTS
The School Distrlct No. 60 Board of Trustees agrees to:

a) Ensure that Halfway River First Nation Students have equitable access to educational
programs in the School District, and to continue to strive towards high levels of First
Nation Student success in educational programs;

b} Ensure all classroom teachers understand the importance of understanding the talents,
gifts, interests and needs of all students in their class. Professional development on
creating class profiles and student profiles will continue to be pravided to all district
teachers.



10727725, 8:20 AM

¢}

d}

)

f)

g)

h}

i

k)

—

m

HRFIN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

Ensure that all students from the Halfway River First Nation are encouraged to meet with
career counselors to complete career interest surveys and to discuss education, career and
training options. This should begin in Grade 10 as part of the Career course requirements
for Graduation.

Continue to explore ways and means of supporting the HRFN community in their quest to
provide Indigenous language instruction in the community setting, with a possibility of
including some basic language instruction in the school setting perhaps at a later date.
{Retaining their rights to initially teach their language at their own Education Center, is at
the request of the HRFN community.)

Approve educational resource materials that promote an understanding of and
appreciation for the history, language and culture of the Halfway River First Nation people
in British Columbia, including reguired curriculum on the residential school experience;

Promote the offering of, and enroflment in, BC First Peoples 12, Indigencus Studies 12 and
Learning from Cur Elders 11&12, Itis understood that all English 10, 11 and 12 courses
will include narrative, expository and poetry texts that present the Indigenous experience
in the local area/British Columbia/Canada to enable Halfway River First Nation students to
<ae’ themselves reflected in the materials in their coursework;

Support principals and teachers in effectively deiivering educational programs referred to
in sections 3.1 {b), (), (d), (e} and {f};

Promote the focused teaching of the Core Competencies for all Halfway River First Nation
Students so that they are able to withstand peer pressure, to he confident in their ability
to ‘rise’, to become self sufficient and to be happy in making responsible life choices;

Ensure Schools support and encourage Halfway River First Nation Students to participate
in extracurricular and sports activities;

Ensure teachers provide information to Parents regarding their child’s educational program
{e.g. course selection process, reporting periods, report cards, as required by the Schoof
Act);

Communicate details of this Agreement, including its purpose, objectives and principles,
with school personnel, in particular principals and teachers;

Ensure the implementation of this agreement through all administration structures;

Spend Indigenous Education (Targeted) Funds on Indigencus Education Programs and
Services identified through the direct invelvement of Halfway River First Nation
representatives (members who sit an the tndigenous Education Council) working with
School District 60 personnel to support the success of Aboriginal Students; and

spend Targeted Indigenous Education Funds on Indigenous education programs and

10



102725, 8:20 AM

n)

HRTN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

services identified through the direct involvement of HRFN representatives of the

‘Indigenous EducationCoemtil working with School District staff to support the success of

students. Indigenous Education Councils {JECs) are responsible for approving the planning,
spending, and reporting of Indigenous Education Targeted Funding. This approval process
ensures that IEC members are involved in decisions related to the funding of programs and
support for Indigenous students, Any underspend of targeted Funding zlso falls under this
process (Province of BC, Order of the Minister of Education and Childcare - Schoo] Act -
Ministerial Order No. M217})

Endeavor to find appropriate First Nations or Non-indigenous mentars for Halfway River
First Nations Students who are enrolled in the Career Life Connections 12 course. The
HRFN Community is especially concerned with providing their studerits with
competencies, confidence and an understanding of the steps involved in applying to
post-secondary education, completing safety and job training requirements and/or
attalning employment in a field that embraces their passions, interests and talents.

3.2 The Halfway River First Nation agrees to:

a)

b)

d)

e}

Promote the active participation and involvement of parents and other community
members of the kirst Nation in the education ot their children, including any available
processes or forums in School District No. 60 (such as parent clubs and other committee
processes) and School District or School activities;

Encourage and support Halfway River First Nations Students to participate in
extracurricular and sports activities; and

Organize and host parent/guardian information sessions to explain various educational
processes in School District No 60, to promote an understanding of the role parents and
guardians play in the education of their children so HRFN community members feel more
comfortable in their participation. HRFN will explore ways to encourage parent
participation in informational sessions.

Provide an opportunity for youth in the HRFN Community to gather to support one
another in their future goals. Possibly establish a Youth Council that could receive nominal
funding to perhaps organize a homework club, Janguage practice andfor information
sessions on such topics as post-secondary education, safety training, personal safety, and
cultural studies etc,

Encourage students to respect their land, community and peers through a career poster
campaign and community gatherings. Students will learn to support one another as they
grow, learn and achieve success.

Provide a space where all students from the Halfway River First Nation are encouraged to
meet with career counselors to complete interest and career surveys and to discuss
education, career and training options onsite in the Halfway River First Nations Training
Center.

11



10/27/25,8:20 AM

g}

h)

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

Subject to receiving Tuition Funding from Indigenous Services, pay the Board the Tuition
Fees received from the federal government as agreed to and set out in this Agreement;
and

Endeavor to find appropriate First Nations or Non-Indigenous mentors for Halfway River
First Nation Students who are enrolled in the Career Life Connections 12 course. The
HRFN Community is especially concerned with providing their students with
competencies, confidence and an understanding of the steps involved in applying to
post-secondary education, completing safety and job training requirements and/or
attaining employment in 2 field that embraces their passions, interests and talents.

3.3 Consistent with the purposes, principles and objectives of this Agreement, School District No. 60,
in making available an educational program to Halfway River First Nation Students, will:

a)

b}

c}

d)

e)

f)

g)

Work with the HRFN, to develop and implement strategies to keep First Nation Students in
school and maintain and implement an Attendance Protocol;

Work with HRFN, to develop and implement strategies to keep students in school and
maintain and implement an Attendance Protocol, via the district’s First Nation support
fiaison who provides a direct link to the school, home and cammunity for HRFN students

and families.

In the case of an Early School Leaver, work with the HRFN to collaborate on a plan that best
meets the educational needs for that First Nation Student;

List all courses with Indigenous content in the course selection handbook in a manner that
clearly indicates Indigenous Education so that any student wishing to enroll can easily
locate these courses;

Promote and support First Nation cultural activities, including Orange Shirt Day activities, in
schools within School District No. 60;

Promote and support effective professional development focused on local First Nations
history, language and culture;

Work with Halfway River First Nation, and Indigenous Education Council where applicable
on how to effectively use the Targeted Aboriginal Education Funding.

Communicate details of this Agreement, including its purpose, objectives and principles,
with school personnel, and in particular principals and teachers; and

3.4 Wherever this Agreement provides that a School, within School District 60, will perform any
obligation under this Agreement, the Board will provide direction to the superintendent,
principals, teachers, and other school staff as needed to fulill that commitment.

12



10727125, 8:20 AM

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES

The Parlies agree Lo, individually, logether, and with Schools, make best efforts to:

a)

b)

c)

d}

Introduce more culturally relevant educational resources and activities in all subject
areas for all students, such as through Board/Authority Authorized courses, and for
events and ceremanias that takes place at a School; and

Offer courses with appropriate, local Indigenous content and residential schools
curriculum;

Develop and review curricular resources for indigenous Education, through a district
committee, which includes members of the local First Nations communities.

Collaborate with the SD60 Indigenous Education Center to suppert the services,
resources, counseling, teaching and cultural development that personnel in this
department are dedicated to undertaking for all Indiganous Students, Including those

from HRFN.

The Parties will work together to address the history of the Indian residential school system
through the development and implementation of curriculum, materials and resources, and
through professional development opportunities, in a sensitive and appropriste manner.

The Parties wil! work in partnership to develop and implement First Nation [anguage programs,
respectful of the dialect of the Beaver language spoken by the Elders the Halfway River First
Nation, The Halfway River First Nations educational leaders will decide who and where this
ianguage instruction will take place,

With regard to intellectual property rights, the Parties acknowledge article 31 of UN Deciaration:

Article 31 1. indigenous peoples have the right to maintain, control, protect and develop
their culturzl heritage, traditional knowledge and traditional cultural expressions, as well
as the manifestations of their sciences, technologies and cultures, including human and
genetic resources, seeds, medicines, knowledge of the properties of fauna and flora, oral
traditions, literatures, designs, sports and traditional games and visual and performing
arts. They also have the right to maintain, contral, protect and develop their inteliectual
property over such cultural heritage, traditional knowledge, and traditional cultural

measures to recognize and protect the exarcise of thesa rights.

Consistent with article 31 of UN Declaration, the Parties agree that:

a) the First Nation retains any intellectual property and copyrights of any curriculum

content developed in collaboration or cooperation with them regarding their First
Nations languages, cultural heritage, traditional knowiedge and traditional cultural
exprassions;

b) the use of such information is intended ta be for instructional purposes only at 2 locai

13



10/27/25,3:08 PM

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

HRFN LEA 2025 to be signed doex - Goagle Does

level and for the school district’s staff’s professional development purposes; and

¢} any ather proposed or intended use requires written consent from the First Nation.

DOGWOOD GRADUATION

School District No. 60 and the Halfway River First Nation will encourage and support each and
every First Nation Student who is capable of achieving the Dogwood Diploma to pursue that
graduation credential.

For greater clarity, School District No. 60, will ensure the intentional or unintentional streaming
or marginalization of Halfway River First Nation Students is not tolerated and that each and
every capable HRFN Student is placed in an educational program that leads to graduation with a
Dogwood Diploma and a full range of opportunities, such as training, post-secondary education
and employment.

The School District will ensure First Nation Students and their parents are provided with
information about the implications of a Dogwood Diploma, as compared with the Adult
Dogwood Diploma and other school leaving certificates, to support informed decision-making by
those First Nation Students and parents. it is recommended that if a student is not on track to
complete a Dogwood Graduation Certificate, a parent/student informational meeting will be
held as soon as possible, perhaps even as soon as the end of grade 9 or beginning of grade 10.

school District No. 60 and Halfway River First Nation will work collaboratively to ensure that all
students in Grades 10 to 12 clearly understand the grades they must attain in various courses to
attend the college or training of their choice.

Schoal District No, 60 will ensure there is appropriate and timely (i.e. early) counselling support
for career and post-secondary education planning available to First Nation Students,

Halfway River First Nation will ensure career, post-secondary education and training materials,
pamphlets and course catalogues are avaliable for students onsite at the HRFN Youth Center at
the Band Office.

School District No. 60 and Halfway River First Nation will work together to investigate and
establish a tutoring program where students would be provided food and encouraged to come
for homework completion, ‘catch up’ or relearning concepts they did not understand.

SPECIAL EDUCATION CONSIDERATION

Note: All points described under Special Education sections 6.0, 6.1, 6.2, 6.3, 7.0, 7.1, 7.2, 8.0,
2.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4, 8.5, 8.6, 8.7, 8.8, 8.9, and 8.10 are considered ‘best practice’ in School District
No. 60 and are mandated for a/f students, including First Nations students.

14



10727725, B:20 AM

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

HREN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

IDENTIFICATION OF FIRST NATION STUDENTS REQUIRING SPECIAL EDUCATION ASSESSMENT

In order to ensure that Halfway River First Nation Students are appropriately identified as
requiring special education supports, the Board will ensure School(s) work with the First Naticn
and Parents to ensure appropriate and transparent ongoing informal assessments of First Nation
Students to identify those who may require more formal special education assessment.

In particular, School District No. 60 and the Halfway First Nation will jointly review and
determine the criteria and processes used for the identification of kindergarten First Nation
Students who may require assessment and additional supports or services, recognizing that early
identifcation is necessary to promote student success, and, for a First Nation Student who is
identified as having a specizl need before entering a School, the First Nation Student’s
assessment and programming information will be requested immediately upon enrollment to
permit appropriate and effective planning and implementation of relevant interventions.

in cases where a Halfway First Nation Student is identified as likely having diverse abilities or a
disability upon enrolment in kindergarten, or when transferring into a School at a later grade
level, or when a First Nation Student has an obvious disability that has not been previously
assessed, the School District and more specifically, the Learning Services Department, will ensure
there is a timely determination of the need for assessment and/or intervention plan.

SPECIAL EDUCATION ASSESSMENT AND PLACEMENT

The Parties agree that special education assessment and placement of, or timetable changes or
new timetables for, Halfway River First Nation Students will follow the 5chool District referral
process, and the Ministry of Education, Special Education Services: A Manual of Policies,
Procedures and Guidelines, as amended from time to time.

For greater clarity:

a) prior to the placement of a Halfway River First Nation Student in a special education
program, an assessment must be completed, with parental consent that identifies the First
Nation Student as requiring supports and services. Depending on the program, this
assessment may be a2 psycho-educational assessment, 2 mental health assessment, or a
behaviour observation or inventary and should include an academic baseline achievement
assessment;

b} prior to diversion of a2 Halfway River First Nation Student to an Evergreen Certificate path, a
psycho-educational assessment must be completed, with parental consent, and must
identify the First Nation Student as having an intellectual disability; and

¢) the results of the assessment must be provided to and discussed with the Parent of that
Halfway River First Nation Student, the school-based team, and First Nation support staff as
may be designated by the First Nation Student’s Parent.

15



10/27425,8:20 AM

8.0

81

82

8.3

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMMING

As soon as practical after a Halfway First Nations Student has been identified having diverse
abilities or a disability:

a)

b)

d)

f)

gl

appropriate supports and services will be identified in order to ensure that the Halfway
River First Nation Student obtains an education that is most appropriate for his or her
needs, and situated in regular classroom environments as much as possible;

the assessment results and educational services to be provided to the Halfway First Nation
student will be outlined in an Individual Education Plan (IEP), which must be completed
with the invitation for parental invoivement, for the purpose of assisting scheol staff to
provide supports and services for the First Nation Student;

a Halfway First Nation Student with diverse abilities or disabilities will take an active role in
the design of their IEP to the maximum extent that their developmental level and ability
permit, noting that factors affecting First Nation Student participation in the development
of an {EP will include: age, level of maturity, and capacity for sustained, considered
deliberation based on awareness of possibilities and conseguences;

a written report stating the reason for placement of the First Nation Student, and the
educational opportunities gained and lost by such placement, must be provided to the
Parent and First Nation support staff as may be designated by the First Nation Student’s
Parent. The School District will develop a template for such a report;

in cases where the Parent appoints a delegate, the Parent and the delegate will receive a
copy of the IEP;

in the event that the Parent declines to be involved in the |EP process and does hot choose
to appoint a delegate, the Board will ensure that the BC Public School will make every
effort to ensure that the Halfway River First Nation Student’s needs are fully met; and

a ‘menu’ of SD60 supports will be made available to a parent, so that they are aware of the
various services, instructional supports and classroom accommodations that may be
employed within SDE0 in an effort to assist the student to be successful.

in developing an (EP, standards for students with diverse abilities or disabilities will be developed
with high and appropriate expectations for achievement, and First Nation Students with IEPs will
be expected to achieve all of the regular curricular competencies andfor outcomes, with

supports.

The Board will ensure the School(s) work with Parents and, with their consent, the First Nation,

to:

a) collaboratively identify any adaptations made to a Halfway First Nation Student’s

educational program;

16



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

2.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

b} ensure that any modifications are made to a Halfway River First Nations Student's
educational programonly when necessary and only when adaptations have been tried and
have proven insufficient to meet the HRFN Student’s needs, and only with the Informed
consent of the First Nation Student’s Parent, or their designate; and

c} if a HRFN Student has been put on a non-Diploma Evergreen Certificate path, ensure that
the HRFN Student’s program: is doecumented in an IEP; wherever possible, aligns as closely
as possible with a graduation diploma program; and supperts learning outcomes that
match, as closely as possible, the learning outcomes of the applicable course, even when
modified,

When requested, the Parent and, where appropriate and feasible, HRFN Students will have every
opportunity to meet with school staff about the 1EP and the HRFN Student's educational
prograrn within a reasonable timeframe, and no later than two weeks after the request has been
made to school personnel.

School District No. 60 will ensure School(s) offer each HRFN Student who has diverse abilities or
disabilities relevant learning activities, in accordance with the student’s IEP.

Frogress reports on their educational achievement in a special education program or on an
Evergreen Certificate path must be provided to the Parent and First Nation support staff as
designated by the First Nation Student’s Parent, according to the same student progress
reporting schedule as followed by the School and. in anv event, not less than at the end of each
term during the placement.

The Board will ensure that Parents are advised:

a) of their right to request a change to the placement of a First Nation Student in a special
education program or on an Evergreen Certificate path;

b) that if the Parent wishes to request a change in a placement decision, they may file such a
request in accordance with applicable Board bylaws, policies and/or procedures; and

¢} where the Parent files a request, the Farent may request, and receive, support in the process
from the First Nation and/or the Aboriginal Education Council,

The Parties agree that IEPs are not intended to be static and will be reviewed and revisited at
least bi-annually in collzberation with the BRFN Student and his ar her Parent, and the IEP will
be either:

a} Updated;

b) Revised; or

¢} Concluded, where it is determined that the HRFN Student no longer requires an IEP.

17



10/27/25,8:20 AM

89

8.10

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.0

111

11.2

HRFEN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Guogle Docs

For greater certainty, the Parties agree that an IEP will only be put in place under sections 8.1
and 8.2 and it will only be updated, revisad or concluded under section 8.8 where the prior
Informed Consent of the Parent or Guardian has been obtained.

The Parties agree that, in the case of all special education categories that are consistent,
individual education plans for HRFN Students with special needs will be recognized and used as
part of the planning process when those HRFN Students transition between First Nations Schools

and Schools.

VULNERABLE STUDENT PLACEMENT

The School District will ensure that School{s) work with Parents and the Halfway River First
Nation to identify Vulnerable Students and, where identification of a First Nation Student as a
Vulnerable Student is suppotted by evidence and demonstrated need, that an Individual
Learning Plan (ILP) will be created with parental involvement, and regularly reviewed, for that
First Nation Student.

CHILDREN IN CARE

The School District will ensure appropriate learning plans and supports are identified and
provided for Children in Care.

The Board will ensure appropriate staff are designated to be responsible for maintaining
communications with the HRFN regarding Children in Care who are First Nation Students.

The Parties will make best efforts to work with supporting agencies to ensure appropriate
supports are implemented to assist Halfway River First Nation Students whe are Children in Care.

STUDENT CONDUCT & SAFETY

The Parties will confirm policies, practices and other appropriate measures to create 2 safe
learning environment, including safety from racism (students and staff), discrimination,
indifference, bias, marginalization, bullying and stereotyping for all students attending the

School(s)

Both Parties have agreed to the continued use of the Band Parent Consent Form, renewed
annually. By signing this form, parents and guardians consent to the sharing of data and
information among members of the student’s support team, including the Indigenous Suppoit
Workers, the Principal of Indigenous Education and the Halfway River First Nations Education
Coordinator. This data and information will be in direct relation to a student’s success and
achievemen? in the school system and will be used as a proactive measure and in positive
support of the student within Schaol District No. 60 schools.

18



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

113

11.4

12.0

121

12.2

13.0

13.1

13.2

13.3

134

13.5

HREFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Does

With written consent of a Halfway River First Nation Student’s Parent/Guardian, School District

- ~60 will notify the FirstNation of disciplinaryaction and potential escalation of-disciplinary action

in relation to that First Nation Student,

The Board wifl direct schools to take a team approach with First Nation Education
represenlalives when dealing with general disciplinary issues involving First Nation Students,
which may include parents or guardians, representatives from Halfway River First Nations, an
Aboriginal Support Worker, and/or personne{ from the Indigenous Education Center.

CULTURAL AWARENESS & HIRING IN THE SCHCQOI, DISTRICT

The Board, in cooperation with the First Nation, agrees to promote a greater awareness and
inclusion of and respect by all School District staff and contractors for the First Nation’s unigque
language, willure and hislory Lhrough its policies, practives, plans, currfeulumn and insteuction.

As per the BC Tripartite Educaticn Agreement, at least gne non-instructional day per year will be
focused on enhancing First Nations Students outcomes commencing in the 2019/20 School Year.

TRANSPORTATION

in order to access First Nations Transportation Fund, the Parties will identify First Nations
Students’ transportation needs and jointly develop and submit annually to the tripartite First
Mation Student Transporiation Committee, a loint First Mation Student Transportation Plan
setting out how the Parties will ensure First Nation Students have reliable and safe
transportation services to the relevant School, including contingency measures for unexpected
circumstances.

The Board agrees that, once transportation services are implemented pursuant to an approved
Joint First Nation Student Transporiation Plan with the First Nation, the Board will not make
changes to those services without written agreement of the First Nation.

As per Schedule G of BCTEA, in the event that the Parties determine they need to revise their
Joint First Nation Student Transportation Plan, and that the revisions require further funding,
they may submit a revised plan to tripartite First Nations Student Transportation Committee.

Where the Parties make amendments to their loint First Nation Student Transportation Flan, or
agree to changes in transportation services, they will ensure that Parents receive notice within a

reasonable time in order to respond to any such changes.

The Board agrees that First Nation Students will not be penalized and will be supported in the
event of absences or late arrivals due to transportation challenges.

19



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

14.0

14.1

14.2

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

REPORTING

Periodic reports:

a)

At least 3 times per year, the School District will provide to the Halfway River First
Nation;

i} the number of HREN Students enrolled in alternate programs, secondary courses
and ungraded programs;

1] a summary of the number and nature of HRFN Students with IEPs placed in
Modified or Adapted prograims;

fii) the number of Early School Leavers and information on supports implemented
to prevent early leaving;

iv) the number of expulsions af HRFN Students and information on supports
implemented to prevent expulsion;

v} school attendance of HRFN Students; and

i) literacy and numeracy achievement of HRFN Students.

Annual Report:

a)

Once each year, the Board will produce and provide ta the First Nation an annual report
outlining the provision of educational programs to First Nations Students under this
Agreement including the content in the Periodic Report, as well as:

i) financial reports related to this Agreement, which are prepared by the Board in
the regular course of its operation and which include a copy of the audited
financial statements;

i) a complete financial report on the Targeted Aboriginal Education Funding,
Additional Funding and Special Education Funding, including ELL, which includes:

a. the number of staff employed using Targeted Aboriginal Education Funding,
Additional Funding and Special Education Funding and designated to work
with First Nation Students;

b. the proportion of the staff's time spent working directly with First Nation
Students; and '

c. the staff's duties and responsibilities;

ii) measures of success of First Nation Students through =ggregate results for
achievement including but not fimited to the following:

20



10/2725, 8:20 AM

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

15.0

15.1

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

1. attendance rates;

2. percentage of students who are an track or extending for reading,
writing and numeracy in grades 4 and 7 in the Foundations Skills
Assessment;

3. participation rates for the Foundations Skills Assessments;

4, grade to grade transition rates;

5. student retention rates;

6. graduation and six-year graduation rates;

7. proportion of students awarded a BC School Completion Certificate;

8. Six-year completion {graduation} rate for studemts in an ARernate

program;

9. pgrades 10to 12 math course participation rates,

10. data related to assessments required for graduation purposes and other
supports for successful transition to post-secondary education; and

11. number of First Nation Students eligible to move on to post-secondary
education.

The Board and First Nation will share two Nominal Rall student counts {September 30 &
February 28) with the Ministry each School Year, The Board and HRFN will meet the week before
the Sept. 30 submission deadline to cross reference student enrgliment lists.

The Board will share with the First Nation its annuai report to the Ministry on the spending of all
First Nation Student Transportation Funding received and the amount of funding spent, which
information should be clearly stated in the Board’s audited financial statements for their
verification;

Subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, upon request, the Board
will provide First Nation community-specific student data to the First Nation to help inform them
about their Students’ progress, and to inform discussions between the First Nation and the
Board on supporting those Students.

The First Nation may initiate the implementation of any formalized option agreed upon by FNESC
and British Columbia, which may include an Information Sharing Protoceol between the Board
and the First Nation, to facilitate the provision and use of available First Nation student-specific
data. SDE0 Indigenous Education Centre has developed a release of information form.

COMMUNICATION

The Parties recognize the need for excellent communication and will establish agreed upon
means far the successful and effective implementation of this Agreement, which may include,
but not be fimited to, regularized meetings and contzct through newsletters and other
correspondence, as appropriate.

21



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

is5.2

153

16.0

161

le6.2

16.3

164

16.5

HREFN LEA 2025_to be signed doex - Google Docs

The Parties recognize the need for effective and ongoing communication with Parenis in the
support of their child’s successful education experience, and the Parties will advise Parents of
opportunities for input and involvement in their child's education, such as course selection
dates, reporting periods, parent-teacher interviews, apglication deadlines and procedures for
post-secondary education, etc.

The Parties will encourage functions and meetings, such as parent-teacher interviews, to be held
in the community.

TUITION PAYMENT

For eligible First Nation Students on the Nominal Roll attending Schools operated by the Board
on September 30th, and for whom the First Nation has received Tuition Funding from indigenous
Services Canada, the First Nation will pay to the Board the Tuition Fees amount in accordance
with this section 16.0 of this Agreement.

The Board will not charge the First Mation a greater amount for the First Nation Students
attending a School within the School District than the First Nation Student Rate (as it pertains to

tuition)

For greater certainty, the Parties agree that the First Nation is respensible only for Tuition
Funding received from Indigenous Services for the Tuition Fees of the First Nation’s Students
according to the approved First Nations Student Rate and approved Nominal Roll. Unless
otherwise agreed, the First Nation will not be responsible for paying any amounts for which it
does not receive funding frem Indigenous Services, or which exceeds the First Nation Student

Rate.

The Parties agree the September 30th Nominal Roll enrolment will be verified by:
a) the First Nation; and
b} the Secretary-Treasurer of the Board.

The Parties agree that Tuition Fees payabie for each School Year shall be paid by the First Nation
to the Board according to the following schedule and based upon the September 30™ Nominal

Roll figures:

a) 70% based on the previous year’s eligible Tuition Feesand Nominal Rollon or before
December 15;

b) 30% of the current year’s eligible Tuition Fees less {or, in addition to) the difference between
the previous and current year’s eligible Tuition Fees on or before March 31;

¢} Year - end reconciliation on or before June 30th.

22



10/27/25,8:20 AM

16.6

16.7

i16.8

16.9

17.0

171

17.2

HREN LEA 2025_tov be signed.docx - Google Docs

In the event of a School closure due to a labour dispute, the Tuition Fees will be equitably
-adjusted-by-the agreemeni-of the Parties and-returned-to the First Nation for the benefit of the
First Nation’s students in the same manner as oceurs with the Ministry of Education.

The Parties agree that tuition fees under this Agreement wil! be paid in installments as set out in
seclion 16.5 herein, except where:

a) a First Nation Student has withdrawn from school during the month ending one month
before the payment due date; or

b) =3 First Nation Student has transferred to a First Nation School or a BC Independent School
during the month ending one month before the payment due date,

in which case, any further Tuition Fees for that First Nation Student will be held by the First
Nation 1o be used for Tuitiun Fees Lo the First Nation School or BC Independent School that the
First Nation Siudent has transferred 1o, or 1o support the contihued education of the First Nation
Student in support of their potential re-entry into the pubiic system, First Nation School or BC
independent Schoal in the future.

The Parties agree that additional services or programs not contemplated by this Agreement may
be provided by the Board through agreement by the Parties on the terms and costs for such
service(s} and/or program(s).

Where Indigenous Services Canada is late in providing Tuition Funding to the First Nation,

a} the First Nation will notify the Board of the delay in receiving IS funding: and

b) the Board will not charge interest to the First Nation on any amount that is outstanding due
to Indigenous Services’ late provision of funding.

IMPLEMENTATION, MONITORING, REVIEW: LEA OVERSIGHT TEAM

The Parties hereby establish a joint LEA Oversight Team responsible for overseeing the
implementation of this Agreement, with representation from the First Nation, the School
District, and each school at which a First Nation Student attends.

The Parties agree to jointly develop terms of reference for the LEA Oversight Team before the
implementation of this LEA agreement {September 8, 2020), which will bacome a Schedule to
this Agreement, and which will include:

a) the membership of the LEA Oversight Team;

b) the roles and responsibilities of the LEA Oversight Team (e.g. managing the implementation

of this Agreement, including delegating tasks as appropriate);

23



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

18.0

18.1

18.2

18.3

19.0

2.1

15.2

20.0

20.1

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

c) a requirement that the LEA Oversight Team develop and finalize an LEA implementation plan
for approval by the Parties within a specified timeframe and which, upon approval, will be
appended to this Agreement;

d} the relationship of the LEA Oversight Team with the Indigenous Education Council; and

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If there is a dispute between the Parties with respect to any matter arising from this
Agreement or relating to the interpretation and application of this Agreement, the Parties agree
to use their best efforts to resolve such disputes in a reasanable and timely manner and in good

faith.

Where there is a dispute between the Parties, the Parties agree they will attempt to use any and
all face-to-face means to resolve the dispute at the point closest to which the dispute first arises
before referring the dispute to senior [evel representatives.

The Parties agree to endeavour to resolve issues or disputes that may arise about this
Agreement, or its implementation, in a manner that fosters an improved, ongoing and respectful
relationship between the Board and the First Nation.

TERM & AMENDMENT

The term of this Agreement will be 4 years, beginning October 7, 2025 and ending October 7,
2029, unless the Parties agree, in writing, 10:

a) terminate the Agreement; or
b) renew the Agreement, with or without amendmenits.

Each Party may suggest improvements and amendments to this Agreement and both Parties
agree to discuss such suggestions in good faith with a view to better achieving the purposes of
this Agreement.

NOTICES

Any notice, ctaim, consent, waiver, statement, or other documents or payment that either party
may require or may desire to give, may be transmitted by mail, fax or persanal delivery and will
be conclusively deemed validly given or delivered or received by the addressee, if delivered
personally on the date of delivery or, if mailed on the fifth business day after the mailing of the
same ih Canada by registered mail addressed or, if faxed with accompanying confirmation of

completed transmission:

24



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

21.0
211

21.2

21.3

214

HRFN LEA 2025_te be signed.docx - Google Docs

If to the First Nation:

Halfway River First Nation

16262 Rd 4
Wonowaon, BC
VOC 2NO

If to the Board:

The Secretary-Treasurer

Schoal District No. 60 {Peace River North)
10112 - 105 Avenue

Fort St John, BC

V1454

GENERAL

This Agreaement will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws in force in the
Province of British Columbia.

This Agreement will be to the benefit of, and binding upen, the Partles hereto and their
respective successors and assigns,

This Agreement supersedes any and all previous local education agreements between the
Parties.

The Parties acknowledge that:

a) nothing in this Agreement, or in the negotiation of this Agreement, or in any prior document
leading to this Agreement, in any way defines ar amends, recognizes, affirms, or denies the
existence of, or in any way limits Aboriginal or treaty rights of the First Nation; and

b) this Agreement is without prejudice to the rights of the Parties and the First Nation with
respect to such matters,

25



10427125, 12:01 P'M HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Geogle Does

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

SIGNED on behalf of the HALFWAY RIVER FIRST NATION by its duly authorized officers:

==

Chief - Darlene Hunter

O X -

Coungiilor = Charmaine Hunter uncifor — Joyce Audit
Councillor — Lori Wéeley Councillor - William Field

in theypresence of:

TN

Witn%ﬁe@on Joseph, Band Manager

SIGNED on behalf of the SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 - BOARD OF EDUCATION

Witness - Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent / CEO

Chairperson —Helen Gilbert, Board of Trustees, Board Chair

Secretary-Treasurer —Angela Telford

26



10427125, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS
1.0 DEFINITIONS
The following definitions apply to the Agreement:

“Aboriginal Education Council” means a counci established by a board of education or school district,
comprised primarily of representatives from First Nations within the school district, to provide advice to
improve outcomes for Abariginal students.

“Adaptations” are teaching and assessment strategies especially designed to accommodate a student’s
needs so he or she can achieve the learning outcomes of the subject or course and to demonstrate
mastery of concepts. Essentially, adaptations are “best practice” in teaching. A student working on
learning outcomes of any grade or course level may be supported through use of adaptations.

“Adult Dogwood” means an adult high school diploma is the British Columbia Aduit Graduation Diploma
(BCAGD) for adult learners {18 and older) who want to take courses in order to complete high school and
obtain their adult high school diploma.

"Assessment Dashboard” means an electronic assessment record of a student’s progress both in the
current year and yearend achlevement year to year Data includes: [iteracy levels, numeracy
achievermnent, grades, attendance and behaviour infractions.

“Attendance Protocol” means an attendance procedure carried out at the schools in the District, which
outlines the recording of attendance of students and the approach to sxcused and unexcused absences
with the overaii purpose of encouraging strong attendance necessary for success in schools.

“BC Public S5chool” or “BC Public School(s)” means all public schools in British Columbia providing
kindergarten to grade 12 education, but does not inciude BC Independent Schools or First Nation
Schools.

“BoardfAuthority Authorized Courses” are courses offered by BC Public Schools to respond to the local
needs of the schools and their communities while providing choice and flexibility for students, according
to requirements set by the Ministry of Education.

“BRFN” s 3 recognized acronym for Blueberry River First Nations.
“Chiild in Care” means a First Nation chiid for whom the Direcitor of Chiid \Weifare is the soie guardian,
and the Public Guardlan and Trustee manages the child's estate.

“Dogwood Certificate or Diploma” means the British Columbia Certificate of Graduation that is awarded
by the Minister to a student upon successful completion of the provincial graduation requirements, as
set out in the provincial Graduation Program and, for greater clarity, does not include an Adult Dogwood.

"Early Leaver Prevention Plan” means a plan of student supports, services or accommodations

devefaped and implemented, where parental consent has been provided, in @ manner consistent with
the Attendance Protocol and with the purpose of re-engaging the First Nation Student and

27



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HEFN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

re-establishing strong attendance. The Plan applies where a First Nation Student misses more than 10%
of scheduled classes in a2 month and will address academic, behavioural, attendance and any other
relevant issues and will include interventions to be undertaken by the school, First Nation and parents.

"Early School Leavers” means:

e any First Nation Student ieaving school prior to the completion of Grade 12, including students
who are expelled; or

e 2 student who has 15 unexcused absences in a month, has missed 75% in any school month, or
has missed 40% of a term or semester;

where the Early Leaver Prevention Plan has been unsuccessful and the First Nation Student has no
Individual Education Plan.

“Evergreen {School Completion) Certificate” is a school-leaving certificate intended to celebrate success
in learning that is not recognized in a Certificate of Graduation {Dogwood Diploma). [t is used to
recognize the accomplishments of students with special needs and an Individual Education Plan, who
have met the goals of their education program, other than graduation (and not all students with special
needs should be in an Evergreen Certificate Program.) The Evergreen Certificate is not a graduation
credential; students who receive an Evergreen have not graduated. The Evergreen represents the
completion of personal learning goals but does not represent graduation.

“First Nation Student Rate” means the education costs for a First Nation Student attending a BC Public
school in a school district, as calculated annually by the Ministry in consultation with FNESC and Canada
{formerly the “First Nations Billing Rate”).

“First Nation Student” means a student who is ordinarily resident on a reserve of the First Nation in
British Columbia and is eligible to be on the Nominal Roll.

“First Nation Transportation Fund” means the First Nation Student Transportation Fund established by
Canada, British Columbia and FNESC to fund the transportation of First Nation Students to BC Public
Schools, commencing in the 2019/2C School Year.

“HRFN” means Halfway River First Nation.
“Indigenous Services, 1S, ISC or DISC” means the federal department of indigenous Services.

“Individual Education Plan {IEP)” means a documented plan developed for a student that describes
individualized goals, Adaptations, Modifications, and the services to be pravided, and includes measures
for tracking achievement, as required by the provincial Individual Education Plan Order M638/95 and
addressed in the Ministry of Education Special Education Services: A Manual of Policies, Procedures and
Guidelines (March 2011), as may be amended from time to time.

“Individual Learning Plan (ILP)” is an education plan developed by the School-Based Team for a student
wha does not meet the criteria for an IEP but is considered to be a Vulnerable Student.

“Informed Consent” refers to the provision of approval or assent, particularly and especially after

28



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

thoughtful consideration, and after receiving all relevant information that is not unreasonably withheld.
In the context of assessment and placement and education referrals; informed Consent requires that the
Parent be informed of;

the assessment procedures to be carried out;
the Information to be collected;

the intervention that may take place;

the likely benefits and risks; and

the option to refuse or withdraw at any time,

and be provided meaningful opportunity to provide input into the assessment and placement or
education referral decision.

“Minister” means the Minister of Education {BC).

“Miinistry” means the Minisiry of Education {BC),

"Madifications” means instructional and assessmentrelated decisions made to accommedate a
student’s educational needs that consist of individualized learning goals and outcomes, which are
different than learning outcomes of a course or subject. Modifications should be considered for those
students whose special needs are such that they are unable to access the curriculum {i.e., students with
limited awareness of their surroundings, students with fragile mental/physical health, students medicaily
and cognitively/multiply chailenged.)

“Nominal Roll" means the annual census of eligible students living on-reserve and attending
elementary/secondary school as of September 30.

“Operating Grants Manual” means the provincial manual, as amended from time to time, that sets out
the provincial funding formuia that comprises a student hasic aliocation plus supplementary grants to
determine school district allocations.

"Ordinarily resident on-reserve™ means that the student usually lives at a civic address on reserve, is a
child in joint custody who lives on reserve most of the time, or is staying on reserve and has no usual
home eisewhere. Students continue to be considered ordinarily resident on reserve if they return to live
on reserve with their parents, guardians or maintainers during the year, even if they live elsewhera while
attending school or working at a summer job. {In this context, reserves are deemed to include all land set
aside by the federal government for the use and occupancy of an Indian band, along with 2ll other
Crown lands which are recognized by Canada as settlement lands of the Indian band of which the
student is a resident.

“Parent” means, in respect of a student:
e the guardian of the person of the student;
e the person legally entitled to custedy of the student; or
e the person who usually has the care and control of the student;

“Schaol” or 5chool{s)” means and includes any school operated by the Board.

29



10/27/25, B:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

“School Act” means the British Columbia Schoo! Act, RSBC 1996, Chapter 412,

1sehool District" or “District” means the area constituted under the School Act as School District # ;

#School Year” means the period beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30 the following year.

“§DE0” is a recognized acrenym for School District No. 60

"Yargeted Aboriginal Education Funding” means the funding provided to the School District by the
Ministry of Education targeted for school age students of Aboriginai ancestry participating in Aboriginal
Education Programs and Services offered by public schools, which must be spent on the provisian of
these programs and services,

*Tuition Fees” means the Tuition Funding per student received from Indigenous Services by the First
Nation, which the First Nation pays to the Board for the purchase of education services, including any
mandatory School Fees, for students in the School District at the rate set out by the Ministry of

Education in its fiscal framework for a given School Year.

“Tuition Funding” means the Tuition Funding received by the First Nation from Indigenous Services
Canada for the education of First Nation Students in the School District who are on the Nominal Roll,
which is invoiced for by the Board as per the First Nation Student Rates established by the Ministry
annually and as determined by the snapshot date of September 30",

wyulnerable Student” means a student who has been identified as finding learning more challenging
based on the following factors: not meeting learning outcomes, significant absence from school, not
transitioning to the next grade, failing courses, behaviour issues, undet suspension, not at grade level

and/or is a child in care.

30



- ——

-———




10/27/25, B:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Does

LOCAL EDUCATION AGREEMENT 2025
Collaborating for the Future
The Halfway River First Nation

Where Knowledge is Power

and
School District No. 60

Where Together We Learn
On the Traditional Territory of the Dane Zaa




10/27/25, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2(25_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

Je aa haanach’e

We live and learn on the traditional territory of the Dane-zaa, within Treaty 8.
INTRODUCTION

The negotiation and adoption of a Local Education Agreement {LEA) provides a significant
opportunity for Halfway First Nation and the Peace River North Board of Education to focus
attention on improving educational outcomes for First Nations Students and on developing the
relationship necessary to accomplish that mutual goal.

The purpose of this Local Education Agreement is to establish shared and individual
responsibilities in the education of our students from the Halfway River First Nation. Both
parties will reconfirm their unwavering commitment to helping First Nations Students reach
their highest potential. Tha terms of this Local Education Agreement reflect the BC Tripartite
Education Agreement between Canada, British Columbia, and the First Nations Education
Steering Committee to support First Nations Student success.

~hared Valugs-

*
Happiness
‘k L"-, S ﬁowler;ﬁ;
kcspumibiliq : Tiadional &
/ : WModem
5 x
Respect Lcarning .
/ 3 . ' Resﬂlcncy
#7 ~" " Co—snu-uraﬁon :‘k N A 5
l\ h Leaaership 7 | -~
] / =
4 . »



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HREFN LEA 2025 _10 be sigped.docx - Google Docs

\ 4 Halfway River First Nation
/ }' = . AND
"“ “ “ bﬂy School District No. 60

Local Education Agreement 2020

VISION
gelieving in the success of each student from the Halfway River First Nation,

school District No. 60 & the Halfway River First Nation Community will work
together to ensure that alf are thriving on their chosen path. Students will reach
their greatest potential, graduating as happy, healthy, skilled, confident young
adults ready for post-secondary education, workplace training and employment,
proud of their traditions and culture.

MISSION
We will work together to support our students from HRFN to be successful, happy

and engaged at all levels of their education from Kindergarten to Graduation.

We will create classroom environments that promote safe spaces for all children
to belong, to be seen and to be heard. Classrooms where children may make
mistakes or ask for help, understanding that mistakes are simply opportunities to

learn more.

As they leave our supported school system, students will understand their first
steps toward independence as a healthy, competent young adult, excited about

the future.



TRy rawaiead pEdiEs L ghy
LU N

i 1p L P NS O UOMHERM S Waiiar] YARET) 2R

LN IR PTT ATIBRTE G U] aid | Lmd vy L
. FITEY AL B3 N E LT SN F pur | oo e AW

Ty

At Agieelog Toprr 1) (Udeg w2 pEv R 0 g

AT W T AN B U Ees oG s umresd 20d purmg e

. A1 ME 432 4 AR) (TR0 0T VAP0 LIRSS 1] | S0 Avu )
T g ViR MEEy A A o BTuen pmsty s s |

SEIRU SRS g s

AR I N 3o Uopig T G ANUH CowtTL v e stagns
R T A T T FTeR T

. e en ea) Licwig ¥oi d3) e par o gy o
T XAETUE I TURTIU AT e (ER R Ll gy,

rulifwTeere.g pre ST e v o om e
1IN 2100 siradaier o) A mEnAS Ly Yrs o oy patuioniue
. A ErE L] SO0 ) A L EE3 ) rpm e g S Ve

RIS
. FIOADUIL |2 f b3 0nt pare vl 2180 gt 'y un e Ha Dngormur pac
o 3= WY RVL TR A MBI

Lo LB CRLEL BNF T TR AT TRy TEE AT L Y ) P
pawapis el o peagaanghing pe sgridray pd e X.é.._ﬁ_x 5

N Ja71y Aomfipy

. 0932810 [cous

T

vjpuosiapun idjay
10/ 450 10 sayoyut ay0uT ADUs LRI 220M sa00ds 'Piosy
34 01 pUD V23S 8¢ 0 ‘Buolag a3 vasmIys AD Jof saanid afos

puD Eyufou) 230)ty10m "BOUDINTR SIDPUOIDS-150
dof Apoai synpo Bunod ‘Juapyuos ‘pajiys ‘Ayyoay
‘Addoy sp Buppnprib Yoguaiec 1s2j02.0 Kay)

R FE T
TEEEIET e ST W 1 R
LS LYHATED [2ELL RELIPYe ALt 0 S o

QU UHTE TN 1t A e A
LR d

WAL EET A4 A narap W ey rhan s e B

Iy, 2 HRER e e nley GORME 0 Sy A0 ¢

Y Arwg ey 18 Pt B B A 4j 4 e rsaetse

TR DA LGAITIRA LR Lk 140 40 ST s gy

R densalil o gLk

LIE BISUY FRLIE0 Pt un s e Ay
B35t B8 ILET I USPrE I It B g ERDTY
SEARY I L SR LR N ez L ) ay)

LRI

[T ] am

IR GIRPY 1A ) [ 2 de T bogEeEn 3y
P USR] £ vy Lok U3 = pd tremili L

P a.u %
.....\ _.....wn
uognuazay Gy 0

3joikatd JOU) SJUFUIOHALD WIDISERII HfO5 2300 [[iwWh A Y3tk i SIVSEHNS “4I0d uasoys iyl uo Bupaug
"uonoNpRIR 0F UIMOIAENLE wosf wolaonps  3/p (10 10y 3Insti2 03 13yIIBOY YoM mm dyunwwron

4213 Jo sjena; o 18 pabaiue pup Adaoy Ynfssaoans ag
01 NAYH Wouf sjuapms Jno 1oddns 01 Ja41a50) Yiom [ agy
HOAsEiy

Aayl JEWD oS ‘Uonel 1527 JaAY AzMI|BH S41 WO USIPIILD JNO JO HBUH
: E.%E., h!%o 0] _urmtoh_uu au.m_.m_..woue_ a& §..m.o Bl E_w..m Ecu o

‘UOISSNISI0

101 J9U123 0] YSIAL OD5 10 N-4HH PIDOYS USYD 2/0W JURaaLL 10,
55300.d B Ui iead sad S5LUN0 £ 1509) i sdupaaw pajrpayds Aeindlay «

‘$3UBPris IO ..un* SUOJS|20D
[EUOLEI"PS 3XEWU 0] LOREW.OJU pue sEap) Jo Bupeys Inpdadses 'Uaad) «
NING 341 104 BUROIUNUINIOS DRD DUYBI0GUIC

Aauinof |euoueanpa Jiay) inoydnosy) jeaualod 15oLwIn oy Ieal Aew “ ﬁ -n

0202 V311 09 114ISIG 190435 1§ VouON 353 ssjy Aomjjo g,

B 1IS)0 JOONIS 21 USLDN Jas il Aomior
woJf yuapnys 303 fo ssaxons 2y uy buma)ag
ez, ARU
1adsay
Ayqisuodsay/diysopoas
HORDIFIMLLIDY
Butinayabpamouy
ssavddoy

FINTY MINYHT

N7 a0 2 proud Mg
Jova & du1ap s vibaseas 1 il Leadiiny

RULELR A TR RETTTE TR 5 ET Y I )
ey 10 k1o n AT 03T 21 M sareaad
S Mgy

APAF T T Ery Sana s LU S

U AILS 3w AL 1|1y At 2reg hne Sy
NERTIFPE 2 A3 |7 LS RGNS SI3d0n1 a1
R TAAL S ATE TLT PR TER I

TR ET DEN BUE Do WA LD TRy AT
RIL LS R PR e b direuy
“igna i par itep SUEL UM

98] Paw g7, AR Puzg 11 U1 00T LA}
ANEDIEE TR B T AL T

LT p

LrPua g g3 drare 2 mieoed Lt-g W rod oo
EUE L= BT FESTSETR T Y

FIF A ipmn mg paeeie o PR R dor

-

AL garmddr

FRUSERITES LT FDE FANL WAL W 2 1

IS MMANNE L WROPPSS ATRTN LA AN ATIRRT | 1L

wopnaInpy
Ayrend i
5320 NS R
nsany N
AUnUWWo?

7 ALUB; 01 pa1IEULD) OsIE
Inq Auesys Ayenpls pul Sujeg @
Bau3ysisad
AR, SauR))sey @
DUIDLUC) @
MBS 1A 30ead "Hutwes)
w3 ung Aof “esauddey @
SIUUBARN OB
ut apud U mreds
& sei) JuoAlana ‘seauasayp
anjea ;ApLep| Bucas @
Wawdg|dwa 'sapes; ‘uogesnpa
Mirpuasas-ysod [pooyynpe
4 sdays Mau By puEIsIRpUN 4
[enlds
“EjuF | eysAyd iyleay pooh 4
$/20d piemo) asodint M ROM
suondn g ANuRp s stenpeln @

3YI7 SY0O7 $5329NS IOYM

WY 0T8 “SE/LTOT

SI0(T 3[8000) - ¥oop'PauBis oq 07 CZ07 V1 NIMH



10/27/25,3:06 PM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Googie Docs

- ey
SRR Ron § .

Our Dreams for the Children of the Halfway River First Nation are:

My dream is that each child of our nation becornes a productive, accomplished, responsible, graduated

adult, at peace in their heart.
~ Joyce Audit, Halfway River First Nation Education Counselor

My drearn for children of our nation is to succeed at any endeavor they set their goals to. Reuch for the

stars and love what life path they take.
~ Kimberley Field, Halfway River First Nation Education Coordinator

We dream of a future where the children of Holfway River thrive with wisdom, strength, and endless
possibilities, guided by our traditions and community spirit.
~ Blesson Joseph, Halfway River First Nation, Band Manager

My dream for Halfway River First Nation students is to have thern achieve their holistic journey to the
best of their ability. To understand “education is the key to unlocking their future” and becoming the best
they can be for themselves, their community and the world!

~ pat Jansen, District Principal, Indigenous Education Center

My dream for the children of Helfway River First Nation is that they graduate with everything needed to
contribute to heolth and happiness and that of others. The time spent in our schools should help
students build the strengths needed for the success they seek.

~ Helen Gilbert, School District No. 60, Trustee {Board Chair)

My hope for Halfway River First Nation students is that their individual stories are honoured and that
they continue to have the opportunity to shape their own life path with the support of parents,
community, peers and educators.

~ Carleen Andrews, Director of instruction, Scheol District No. 60

You are the author of your own life story.
You can stort a new chapter anytime you
choose.




10127425, 8:20 AM

WH

A,

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day of , 2025

shall be effective from the 1% day of , 2025,

BETWEEN:

THE HALFWAY RIVER FIRST NATION
AND:
THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60

EREAS

On July 1, 2018, the Province of British Colurnbia, the Government of Canada and the First Matlons
Education Steering Committee entered into the BC Tripartite Education Agreement (“BCTEA”),
agreeing to work together to make systemic shifts to support successful educational autcomes of all
First Nation Students, regardless of where they live or are enrolled in schoo! in British Columbia,
through the provision of high quality and culturzlly relevant elementary and secondary educational
programs and services, and supported by funding that is responsive to unigue needs of First Nation
Students, First Nation $chools and communities.

The parties to the BCTEA recognize Local Education Agreements {“LEAs") as an integral parl of Lhe
delivery of education services to First Nation students attending BC Schools, as they are an
important mechanism for building relationships between First Nation communities and boards of
education and schools to support improved First Nation student outcomes.

The Parties recognize that the signing of this LEA is a step consistent with the Province of British
Columbia's commitment to adopting and implementing the United Nations Declaration on the Rights
of Indigenous People (the “UN Declaration”) and the Truth and Reconciliation Commission {TRC) Calls
to Action for reconciliation. In addition, the Parties agree that this approach intends to follow British
Columbia’s Draft Principles that Guide the Province of British Columbia’s Relationship with
Indigenous Peoples.

The Board has the authority, under section 86 (3) of the Schoof Act, to enter into agreements with a
Council of a Band ss defined in the fadaral indien Act, RSC, c. 1-5, or the councdil af an Indian band
established by another Act of the government of Canada, with respect to the education of First
Nations Students.

The First Nation, pursuant to its inherent jurisdiction aver educational matters, has the authority and
responsibility for the education of First Nation Students and desires to ensure its students all have
access to, and receive, quality education that is respectful and reflective of their unique culture and
history.



1027425, 8:20 AM

HREN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

F. The Parties agree that the principals, teachers and other staff in BC Public Schools have a central and

important role to play in the provision of guality education programs and setvices and in the
implementation and effectiveness of a LEA.

G. The Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to set out the terms and conditions regarding the

purchase of education services by the First Nation from the Board for the First Nation’s Students.

THEREFORE the Parties agree as follows:

1.0

1.1

20

2.1

PURPOSE
The Parties agree that the purposes of this Agreement are to:

a) Confirm the mutual commitment of the Parties, and acknowledge the important role of
Schools, to build a positive, effective, collaborative and constructive relationship to improve
the First Nation’s Students’ educational outcomes and achieve high levels of First Nation
Student success, graduation and transition to post-secondary education and training, or
employment;

b) Set out the roles and responsibilities of the Parties and School(s) to meet the purposes and
objectives of this Agreement, consistent with the BCTEA; and

¢} Serve as a core shared accountability mechanism for both the First Nation and the Board
regarding the education of First Nations Students in the School District.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The Parties will be guided by the following principles:
First Nations’ Central Role in First Nations Education

a) Indigenous families and communities have the right to retain shared responsibifity for the
upbringing, training, education and well-being of their children, consistent with the rights of
the child, and Indigenous peoples have the right to open and respectful communication with
the school district for the educational benefit of their children.

b) Halfway River First Nation will encourage, help to advise and support schools and
departments in offering opportunities for learning the languages of the territory and
appropriate cultural methods of teaching and learning. HRFN prefers to undertake their own
traditional teachings while encouraging the schoal district to provide general crafts and
stories without a spiritual nature. HRFN is currently exploring the how to offer some
language development onsite at the HRFN Education Center,



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Goegle Docs

“c) Together ~with the ~Schiio]l Distict, “Halfway River First Nation hds control of ~and
decision-making responsibility for the education of the children of their community and will
enter into dialogue with School District No. 60 about areas going well and about areas

requiring further attention or focus.

d) Halfway River First Nation has a central role in the education of their students, regardless of
where they attend school.

Eirst Nation Students Access to Quality Education

e) The Halfway River First Nation Students, at all levels of education, must have access to
educational oppartunities that:

i.  arestructured to support the growth, safety and unique needs of each student;
ii. offer groupings within schoois and ciassracms that promote a sense of beionging and
inelusian;
iii.  offar multiple opportunities for open communication so HRFN Students may find their
‘voice’ and feel welcome to share their ideas and thoughts;
iv.  enhsure that they are contident in their selt-identity, their families, their communities and
traditional values, languages and cultures;
v.  support transitions at all levels of education:
i. first time entry at anv grade |level from the HRFN Community
iil. movement from elementary school to middle school
ifi. movement from middle school to secondary school
iv. secondary school to life after Grade 12 {access/customize process already in
place - i.e. Learning lourneys, myBlueprint and Capstone Project)
vi,  give HRFN Students the skills they need to thrive in contemporary society, including 21st
century technological skills;
vii.  prepare them to access any opportunities they choose for higher learning, employment
and life choices; and
viii.  support HRFN Students to develop a strong identity, proud of their heritage.

Reconciliation & Collaboration in First Nation Education

f) First Nations education in British Columbia is highly complex, engaging federal, provincial
and First Nation authorities, roles and responsibilities and, therefore, requiring collaboration
and cooperation to ensure that all First Nation Students are supported to achieve successful
education cutcomes.

g) The gap in educational outcomes between First Nation Students and non-First Nation
students is a persisting legacy of colonizlism, and concerted efforts and proactive measures
are required to eliminate this gap and contribute to reconciliation in education.

h) The Parties have a shared interest and priority in supporting excellence in First Natians
education, including supporting First Nation Students to fulfill their educational potential by
having access te and receiving quality education that is respectful and reflective of their
unique culture and history.



1027425, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

i) Strong, effective and inclusive educational systems provide a fundamental opportunity for
building relationships and advancing reconciliation batween the Crown and First Nations, as
expressed in the TRC’s Calls to Action and the UN Declaration.

j} CQuality First Nations education includes standards, programs, services, school supports and
investments that provide appropriate tools and resources aimed at achieving successful First
Nation Student outcomes and achievements, while addressing their unique needs.

k) Curriculum, materials and resources will meaningfully reflect the First Nations' culture,
values, language and traditions, as outlined in all curriculum materials in the revised BC
Curriculum advised by the First Nations Education Steering Committee {FNESC). At some
point in the year, each classroom will offer experiential learning opportunities as Halfway
River First Nation Students regularly participate in ‘hands on’ learning to acquire skills taught
by their Elders. it is expected that experiential teaching will increase chances of school
success for HREN Students, should it be encouraged in school district classrooms.

) LEAs are an important mechanism to faciiitate relationship-building, from negotiation
through to ongoing implementation.

m) The standards set by the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples
apply to First Nations education.

n) The Truth and Reconciliation Commission’s Calis to Action set out a framewark for
reconciliation, including with regard to First Nations education, that must inform the
relationships and coliaboration between First Nations, the Province and boards of education.

Parental Choice

The BC $choal Act sets out a process for a First Nations to designate which schoal First Nation 3
students living on community, on self-governing First Nation lands or Treaty lands are entitled to
attend. The Act acknowledges the importance of providing educational opportunities that align
with the preferences and needs of HRFN students and families. HRFN and the School Board will
work towards establishing a specific date by which HRFN will designate their preferred school.
It is important to note this designation is optional and does not impact exjsting school choice
Arrangements HRFN parents/guardians had made with the hoard of education (BC School Act)

o) Parents have the right to decide where their children will be enrolled ta receive the benefit
of an education program and School District No. 60 is dedicated to providing the best
possible educational placement for the students from The Halfway First Nation community.

The following process will occur if there is an issue with @ HRFN Student’s placement:

a. The child's parent, guardian or representative from the HRFN community will contact
the School District executive staff member responsible for Indigenous Education, to
describe the issue and to request a meeting.

b. A mutually convenient date and place will be set for a meeting to occur, with zll
parties bringing their thoughts and ideas to the table.



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

3.0

31

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

c. School District No, 60 will attempt to provide solutions to the placement situation
and-may beable to offer alternatives that tite HRFN-member may wish to consider.

d. School District No. 60 is committed to the understanding that sometimes alternative
class and schoal placements may be required for the success of the child and will
investigate all class availability in the current school and other schools, as requested.

First Nation Student Safety

p) Halfway First Nation Students have 3 right to feel safe at school, including safety from racism
{students and staff), indifference, bias, marginalization, bullying and stereotyping.

The district is committed to enhancing cultural competency, specifically addressing the needs
of the HRFN community. To this end, we will implement continuous cultural competency
and anti-racism training for all educators, administrators, trustees, and staff. This ongolng
training wiil cover Indigencus history, cuiture, and contemporary issues, with a focus on
recognizing and addressing biases and privilege. Bv fostering a deeper understanding and
respect for Indigenous perspectives, we aim to create a mare inclusive and equitable
educational environment for HRFN students.

Shared Accountability and Data-Sharing

g} LEAs are more than a mere financial transaction and serve as a core shared accountability
mechanism for both Halfway River First Nation and Schoo! District No. 60 regarding First
Nations education in our district.

r) Timely and relevant data is required to inform decision-making to support First Mation
Students. The executive staff member, responsible for Indigenous Education, wiil organize
no less than 3 informational meetings per year with the Halfway River First Nations
representatives to share relevant data regarding academic achievement, attendance and
special education enrolment.

s) School District Ng. 60 will consistently use the SD60 Assessment Dashboard to monitor the
progress of all Halfway First Mation Students in an attempt to be proactive, both in
celebrating successes and in intervening when there are struggles.

RESPONSIBILITIES & CONVIMITMENTS
The School Distrlct No. 60 Board of Trustees agrees to:

a) Ensure that Halfway River First Nation Students have equitable access to educational
programs in the School District, and to continue to strive towards high levels of First
Nation Student success in educational programs;

b} Ensure all classroom teachers understand the importance of understanding the talents,
gifts, interests and needs of all students in their class. Professional development on
creating class profiles and student profiles will continue to be pravided to all district
teachers.



10727725, 8:20 AM

¢}

d}

)

f)

g)

h}

i

k)

—

m

HRFIN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

Ensure that all students from the Halfway River First Nation are encouraged to meet with
career counselors to complete career interest surveys and to discuss education, career and
training options. This should begin in Grade 10 as part of the Career course requirements
for Graduation.

Continue to explore ways and means of supporting the HRFN community in their quest to
provide Indigenous language instruction in the community setting, with a possibility of
including some basic language instruction in the school setting perhaps at a later date.
{Retaining their rights to initially teach their language at their own Education Center, is at
the request of the HRFN community.)

Approve educational resource materials that promote an understanding of and
appreciation for the history, language and culture of the Halfway River First Nation people
in British Columbia, including reguired curriculum on the residential school experience;

Promote the offering of, and enroflment in, BC First Peoples 12, Indigencus Studies 12 and
Learning from Cur Elders 11&12, Itis understood that all English 10, 11 and 12 courses
will include narrative, expository and poetry texts that present the Indigenous experience
in the local area/British Columbia/Canada to enable Halfway River First Nation students to
<ae’ themselves reflected in the materials in their coursework;

Support principals and teachers in effectively deiivering educational programs referred to
in sections 3.1 {b), (), (d), (e} and {f};

Promote the focused teaching of the Core Competencies for all Halfway River First Nation
Students so that they are able to withstand peer pressure, to he confident in their ability
to ‘rise’, to become self sufficient and to be happy in making responsible life choices;

Ensure Schools support and encourage Halfway River First Nation Students to participate
in extracurricular and sports activities;

Ensure teachers provide information to Parents regarding their child’s educational program
{e.g. course selection process, reporting periods, report cards, as required by the Schoof
Act);

Communicate details of this Agreement, including its purpose, objectives and principles,
with school personnel, in particular principals and teachers;

Ensure the implementation of this agreement through all administration structures;

Spend Indigenous Education (Targeted) Funds on Indigencus Education Programs and
Services identified through the direct invelvement of Halfway River First Nation
representatives (members who sit an the tndigenous Education Council) working with
School District 60 personnel to support the success of Aboriginal Students; and

spend Targeted Indigenous Education Funds on Indigenous education programs and

10



102725, 8:20 AM

n)

HRTN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

services identified through the direct involvement of HRFN representatives of the

‘Indigenous EducationCoemtil working with School District staff to support the success of

students. Indigenous Education Councils {JECs) are responsible for approving the planning,
spending, and reporting of Indigenous Education Targeted Funding. This approval process
ensures that IEC members are involved in decisions related to the funding of programs and
support for Indigenous students, Any underspend of targeted Funding zlso falls under this
process (Province of BC, Order of the Minister of Education and Childcare - Schoo] Act -
Ministerial Order No. M217})

Endeavor to find appropriate First Nations or Non-indigenous mentars for Halfway River
First Nations Students who are enrolled in the Career Life Connections 12 course. The
HRFN Community is especially concerned with providing their studerits with
competencies, confidence and an understanding of the steps involved in applying to
post-secondary education, completing safety and job training requirements and/or
attalning employment in a field that embraces their passions, interests and talents.

3.2 The Halfway River First Nation agrees to:

a)

b)

d)

e}

Promote the active participation and involvement of parents and other community
members of the kirst Nation in the education ot their children, including any available
processes or forums in School District No. 60 (such as parent clubs and other committee
processes) and School District or School activities;

Encourage and support Halfway River First Nations Students to participate in
extracurricular and sports activities; and

Organize and host parent/guardian information sessions to explain various educational
processes in School District No 60, to promote an understanding of the role parents and
guardians play in the education of their children so HRFN community members feel more
comfortable in their participation. HRFN will explore ways to encourage parent
participation in informational sessions.

Provide an opportunity for youth in the HRFN Community to gather to support one
another in their future goals. Possibly establish a Youth Council that could receive nominal
funding to perhaps organize a homework club, Janguage practice andfor information
sessions on such topics as post-secondary education, safety training, personal safety, and
cultural studies etc,

Encourage students to respect their land, community and peers through a career poster
campaign and community gatherings. Students will learn to support one another as they
grow, learn and achieve success.

Provide a space where all students from the Halfway River First Nation are encouraged to
meet with career counselors to complete interest and career surveys and to discuss
education, career and training options onsite in the Halfway River First Nations Training
Center.

11



10/27/25,8:20 AM

g}

h)

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

Subject to receiving Tuition Funding from Indigenous Services, pay the Board the Tuition
Fees received from the federal government as agreed to and set out in this Agreement;
and

Endeavor to find appropriate First Nations or Non-Indigenous mentors for Halfway River
First Nation Students who are enrolled in the Career Life Connections 12 course. The
HRFN Community is especially concerned with providing their students with
competencies, confidence and an understanding of the steps involved in applying to
post-secondary education, completing safety and job training requirements and/or
attaining employment in 2 field that embraces their passions, interests and talents.

3.3 Consistent with the purposes, principles and objectives of this Agreement, School District No. 60,
in making available an educational program to Halfway River First Nation Students, will:

a)

b}

c}

d)

e)

f)

g)

Work with the HRFN, to develop and implement strategies to keep First Nation Students in
school and maintain and implement an Attendance Protocol;

Work with HRFN, to develop and implement strategies to keep students in school and
maintain and implement an Attendance Protocol, via the district’s First Nation support
fiaison who provides a direct link to the school, home and cammunity for HRFN students

and families.

In the case of an Early School Leaver, work with the HRFN to collaborate on a plan that best
meets the educational needs for that First Nation Student;

List all courses with Indigenous content in the course selection handbook in a manner that
clearly indicates Indigenous Education so that any student wishing to enroll can easily
locate these courses;

Promote and support First Nation cultural activities, including Orange Shirt Day activities, in
schools within School District No. 60;

Promote and support effective professional development focused on local First Nations
history, language and culture;

Work with Halfway River First Nation, and Indigenous Education Council where applicable
on how to effectively use the Targeted Aboriginal Education Funding.

Communicate details of this Agreement, including its purpose, objectives and principles,
with school personnel, and in particular principals and teachers; and

3.4 Wherever this Agreement provides that a School, within School District 60, will perform any
obligation under this Agreement, the Board will provide direction to the superintendent,
principals, teachers, and other school staff as needed to fulill that commitment.

12



10727125, 8:20 AM

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES

The Parlies agree Lo, individually, logether, and with Schools, make best efforts to:

a)

b)

c)

d}

Introduce more culturally relevant educational resources and activities in all subject
areas for all students, such as through Board/Authority Authorized courses, and for
events and ceremanias that takes place at a School; and

Offer courses with appropriate, local Indigenous content and residential schools
curriculum;

Develop and review curricular resources for indigenous Education, through a district
committee, which includes members of the local First Nations communities.

Collaborate with the SD60 Indigenous Education Center to suppert the services,
resources, counseling, teaching and cultural development that personnel in this
department are dedicated to undertaking for all Indiganous Students, Including those

from HRFN.

The Parties will work together to address the history of the Indian residential school system
through the development and implementation of curriculum, materials and resources, and
through professional development opportunities, in a sensitive and appropriste manner.

The Parties wil! work in partnership to develop and implement First Nation [anguage programs,
respectful of the dialect of the Beaver language spoken by the Elders the Halfway River First
Nation, The Halfway River First Nations educational leaders will decide who and where this
ianguage instruction will take place,

With regard to intellectual property rights, the Parties acknowledge article 31 of UN Deciaration:

Article 31 1. indigenous peoples have the right to maintain, control, protect and develop
their culturzl heritage, traditional knowledge and traditional cultural expressions, as well
as the manifestations of their sciences, technologies and cultures, including human and
genetic resources, seeds, medicines, knowledge of the properties of fauna and flora, oral
traditions, literatures, designs, sports and traditional games and visual and performing
arts. They also have the right to maintain, contral, protect and develop their inteliectual
property over such cultural heritage, traditional knowledge, and traditional cultural

measures to recognize and protect the exarcise of thesa rights.

Consistent with article 31 of UN Declaration, the Parties agree that:

a) the First Nation retains any intellectual property and copyrights of any curriculum

content developed in collaboration or cooperation with them regarding their First
Nations languages, cultural heritage, traditional knowiedge and traditional cultural
exprassions;

b) the use of such information is intended ta be for instructional purposes only at 2 locai

13



10/27/25,3:08 PM

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

HRFN LEA 2025 to be signed doex - Goagle Does

level and for the school district’s staff’s professional development purposes; and

¢} any ather proposed or intended use requires written consent from the First Nation.

DOGWOOD GRADUATION

School District No. 60 and the Halfway River First Nation will encourage and support each and
every First Nation Student who is capable of achieving the Dogwood Diploma to pursue that
graduation credential.

For greater clarity, School District No. 60, will ensure the intentional or unintentional streaming
or marginalization of Halfway River First Nation Students is not tolerated and that each and
every capable HRFN Student is placed in an educational program that leads to graduation with a
Dogwood Diploma and a full range of opportunities, such as training, post-secondary education
and employment.

The School District will ensure First Nation Students and their parents are provided with
information about the implications of a Dogwood Diploma, as compared with the Adult
Dogwood Diploma and other school leaving certificates, to support informed decision-making by
those First Nation Students and parents. it is recommended that if a student is not on track to
complete a Dogwood Graduation Certificate, a parent/student informational meeting will be
held as soon as possible, perhaps even as soon as the end of grade 9 or beginning of grade 10.

school District No. 60 and Halfway River First Nation will work collaboratively to ensure that all
students in Grades 10 to 12 clearly understand the grades they must attain in various courses to
attend the college or training of their choice.

Schoal District No, 60 will ensure there is appropriate and timely (i.e. early) counselling support
for career and post-secondary education planning available to First Nation Students,

Halfway River First Nation will ensure career, post-secondary education and training materials,
pamphlets and course catalogues are avaliable for students onsite at the HRFN Youth Center at
the Band Office.

School District No. 60 and Halfway River First Nation will work together to investigate and
establish a tutoring program where students would be provided food and encouraged to come
for homework completion, ‘catch up’ or relearning concepts they did not understand.

SPECIAL EDUCATION CONSIDERATION

Note: All points described under Special Education sections 6.0, 6.1, 6.2, 6.3, 7.0, 7.1, 7.2, 8.0,
2.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4, 8.5, 8.6, 8.7, 8.8, 8.9, and 8.10 are considered ‘best practice’ in School District
No. 60 and are mandated for a/f students, including First Nations students.

14



10727725, B:20 AM

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

HREN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

IDENTIFICATION OF FIRST NATION STUDENTS REQUIRING SPECIAL EDUCATION ASSESSMENT

In order to ensure that Halfway River First Nation Students are appropriately identified as
requiring special education supports, the Board will ensure School(s) work with the First Naticn
and Parents to ensure appropriate and transparent ongoing informal assessments of First Nation
Students to identify those who may require more formal special education assessment.

In particular, School District No. 60 and the Halfway First Nation will jointly review and
determine the criteria and processes used for the identification of kindergarten First Nation
Students who may require assessment and additional supports or services, recognizing that early
identifcation is necessary to promote student success, and, for a First Nation Student who is
identified as having a specizl need before entering a School, the First Nation Student’s
assessment and programming information will be requested immediately upon enrollment to
permit appropriate and effective planning and implementation of relevant interventions.

in cases where a Halfway First Nation Student is identified as likely having diverse abilities or a
disability upon enrolment in kindergarten, or when transferring into a School at a later grade
level, or when a First Nation Student has an obvious disability that has not been previously
assessed, the School District and more specifically, the Learning Services Department, will ensure
there is a timely determination of the need for assessment and/or intervention plan.

SPECIAL EDUCATION ASSESSMENT AND PLACEMENT

The Parties agree that special education assessment and placement of, or timetable changes or
new timetables for, Halfway River First Nation Students will follow the 5chool District referral
process, and the Ministry of Education, Special Education Services: A Manual of Policies,
Procedures and Guidelines, as amended from time to time.

For greater clarity:

a) prior to the placement of a Halfway River First Nation Student in a special education
program, an assessment must be completed, with parental consent that identifies the First
Nation Student as requiring supports and services. Depending on the program, this
assessment may be a2 psycho-educational assessment, 2 mental health assessment, or a
behaviour observation or inventary and should include an academic baseline achievement
assessment;

b} prior to diversion of a2 Halfway River First Nation Student to an Evergreen Certificate path, a
psycho-educational assessment must be completed, with parental consent, and must
identify the First Nation Student as having an intellectual disability; and

¢) the results of the assessment must be provided to and discussed with the Parent of that
Halfway River First Nation Student, the school-based team, and First Nation support staff as
may be designated by the First Nation Student’s Parent.

15



10/27425,8:20 AM

8.0

81

82

8.3

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMMING

As soon as practical after a Halfway First Nations Student has been identified having diverse
abilities or a disability:

a)

b)

d)

f)

gl

appropriate supports and services will be identified in order to ensure that the Halfway
River First Nation Student obtains an education that is most appropriate for his or her
needs, and situated in regular classroom environments as much as possible;

the assessment results and educational services to be provided to the Halfway First Nation
student will be outlined in an Individual Education Plan (IEP), which must be completed
with the invitation for parental invoivement, for the purpose of assisting scheol staff to
provide supports and services for the First Nation Student;

a Halfway First Nation Student with diverse abilities or disabilities will take an active role in
the design of their IEP to the maximum extent that their developmental level and ability
permit, noting that factors affecting First Nation Student participation in the development
of an {EP will include: age, level of maturity, and capacity for sustained, considered
deliberation based on awareness of possibilities and conseguences;

a written report stating the reason for placement of the First Nation Student, and the
educational opportunities gained and lost by such placement, must be provided to the
Parent and First Nation support staff as may be designated by the First Nation Student’s
Parent. The School District will develop a template for such a report;

in cases where the Parent appoints a delegate, the Parent and the delegate will receive a
copy of the IEP;

in the event that the Parent declines to be involved in the |EP process and does hot choose
to appoint a delegate, the Board will ensure that the BC Public School will make every
effort to ensure that the Halfway River First Nation Student’s needs are fully met; and

a ‘menu’ of SD60 supports will be made available to a parent, so that they are aware of the
various services, instructional supports and classroom accommodations that may be
employed within SDE0 in an effort to assist the student to be successful.

in developing an (EP, standards for students with diverse abilities or disabilities will be developed
with high and appropriate expectations for achievement, and First Nation Students with IEPs will
be expected to achieve all of the regular curricular competencies andfor outcomes, with

supports.

The Board will ensure the School(s) work with Parents and, with their consent, the First Nation,

to:

a) collaboratively identify any adaptations made to a Halfway First Nation Student’s

educational program;

16



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

2.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

b} ensure that any modifications are made to a Halfway River First Nations Student's
educational programonly when necessary and only when adaptations have been tried and
have proven insufficient to meet the HRFN Student’s needs, and only with the Informed
consent of the First Nation Student’s Parent, or their designate; and

c} if a HRFN Student has been put on a non-Diploma Evergreen Certificate path, ensure that
the HRFN Student’s program: is doecumented in an IEP; wherever possible, aligns as closely
as possible with a graduation diploma program; and supperts learning outcomes that
match, as closely as possible, the learning outcomes of the applicable course, even when
modified,

When requested, the Parent and, where appropriate and feasible, HRFN Students will have every
opportunity to meet with school staff about the 1EP and the HRFN Student's educational
prograrn within a reasonable timeframe, and no later than two weeks after the request has been
made to school personnel.

School District No. 60 will ensure School(s) offer each HRFN Student who has diverse abilities or
disabilities relevant learning activities, in accordance with the student’s IEP.

Frogress reports on their educational achievement in a special education program or on an
Evergreen Certificate path must be provided to the Parent and First Nation support staff as
designated by the First Nation Student’s Parent, according to the same student progress
reporting schedule as followed by the School and. in anv event, not less than at the end of each
term during the placement.

The Board will ensure that Parents are advised:

a) of their right to request a change to the placement of a First Nation Student in a special
education program or on an Evergreen Certificate path;

b) that if the Parent wishes to request a change in a placement decision, they may file such a
request in accordance with applicable Board bylaws, policies and/or procedures; and

¢} where the Parent files a request, the Farent may request, and receive, support in the process
from the First Nation and/or the Aboriginal Education Council,

The Parties agree that IEPs are not intended to be static and will be reviewed and revisited at
least bi-annually in collzberation with the BRFN Student and his ar her Parent, and the IEP will
be either:

a} Updated;

b) Revised; or

¢} Concluded, where it is determined that the HRFN Student no longer requires an IEP.

17



10/27/25,8:20 AM

89

8.10

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.0

111

11.2

HRFEN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Guogle Docs

For greater certainty, the Parties agree that an IEP will only be put in place under sections 8.1
and 8.2 and it will only be updated, revisad or concluded under section 8.8 where the prior
Informed Consent of the Parent or Guardian has been obtained.

The Parties agree that, in the case of all special education categories that are consistent,
individual education plans for HRFN Students with special needs will be recognized and used as
part of the planning process when those HRFN Students transition between First Nations Schools

and Schools.

VULNERABLE STUDENT PLACEMENT

The School District will ensure that School{s) work with Parents and the Halfway River First
Nation to identify Vulnerable Students and, where identification of a First Nation Student as a
Vulnerable Student is suppotted by evidence and demonstrated need, that an Individual
Learning Plan (ILP) will be created with parental involvement, and regularly reviewed, for that
First Nation Student.

CHILDREN IN CARE

The School District will ensure appropriate learning plans and supports are identified and
provided for Children in Care.

The Board will ensure appropriate staff are designated to be responsible for maintaining
communications with the HRFN regarding Children in Care who are First Nation Students.

The Parties will make best efforts to work with supporting agencies to ensure appropriate
supports are implemented to assist Halfway River First Nation Students whe are Children in Care.

STUDENT CONDUCT & SAFETY

The Parties will confirm policies, practices and other appropriate measures to create 2 safe
learning environment, including safety from racism (students and staff), discrimination,
indifference, bias, marginalization, bullying and stereotyping for all students attending the

School(s)

Both Parties have agreed to the continued use of the Band Parent Consent Form, renewed
annually. By signing this form, parents and guardians consent to the sharing of data and
information among members of the student’s support team, including the Indigenous Suppoit
Workers, the Principal of Indigenous Education and the Halfway River First Nations Education
Coordinator. This data and information will be in direct relation to a student’s success and
achievemen? in the school system and will be used as a proactive measure and in positive
support of the student within Schaol District No. 60 schools.

18



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

113

11.4

12.0

121

12.2

13.0

13.1

13.2

13.3

134

13.5

HREFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Does

With written consent of a Halfway River First Nation Student’s Parent/Guardian, School District

- ~60 will notify the FirstNation of disciplinaryaction and potential escalation of-disciplinary action

in relation to that First Nation Student,

The Board wifl direct schools to take a team approach with First Nation Education
represenlalives when dealing with general disciplinary issues involving First Nation Students,
which may include parents or guardians, representatives from Halfway River First Nations, an
Aboriginal Support Worker, and/or personne{ from the Indigenous Education Center.

CULTURAL AWARENESS & HIRING IN THE SCHCQOI, DISTRICT

The Board, in cooperation with the First Nation, agrees to promote a greater awareness and
inclusion of and respect by all School District staff and contractors for the First Nation’s unigque
language, willure and hislory Lhrough its policies, practives, plans, currfeulumn and insteuction.

As per the BC Tripartite Educaticn Agreement, at least gne non-instructional day per year will be
focused on enhancing First Nations Students outcomes commencing in the 2019/20 School Year.

TRANSPORTATION

in order to access First Nations Transportation Fund, the Parties will identify First Nations
Students’ transportation needs and jointly develop and submit annually to the tripartite First
Mation Student Transporiation Committee, a loint First Mation Student Transportation Plan
setting out how the Parties will ensure First Nation Students have reliable and safe
transportation services to the relevant School, including contingency measures for unexpected
circumstances.

The Board agrees that, once transportation services are implemented pursuant to an approved
Joint First Nation Student Transporiation Plan with the First Nation, the Board will not make
changes to those services without written agreement of the First Nation.

As per Schedule G of BCTEA, in the event that the Parties determine they need to revise their
Joint First Nation Student Transportation Plan, and that the revisions require further funding,
they may submit a revised plan to tripartite First Nations Student Transportation Committee.

Where the Parties make amendments to their loint First Nation Student Transportation Flan, or
agree to changes in transportation services, they will ensure that Parents receive notice within a

reasonable time in order to respond to any such changes.

The Board agrees that First Nation Students will not be penalized and will be supported in the
event of absences or late arrivals due to transportation challenges.

19



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

14.0

14.1

14.2

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

REPORTING

Periodic reports:

a)

At least 3 times per year, the School District will provide to the Halfway River First
Nation;

i} the number of HREN Students enrolled in alternate programs, secondary courses
and ungraded programs;

1] a summary of the number and nature of HRFN Students with IEPs placed in
Modified or Adapted prograims;

fii) the number of Early School Leavers and information on supports implemented
to prevent early leaving;

iv) the number of expulsions af HRFN Students and information on supports
implemented to prevent expulsion;

v} school attendance of HRFN Students; and

i) literacy and numeracy achievement of HRFN Students.

Annual Report:

a)

Once each year, the Board will produce and provide ta the First Nation an annual report
outlining the provision of educational programs to First Nations Students under this
Agreement including the content in the Periodic Report, as well as:

i) financial reports related to this Agreement, which are prepared by the Board in
the regular course of its operation and which include a copy of the audited
financial statements;

i) a complete financial report on the Targeted Aboriginal Education Funding,
Additional Funding and Special Education Funding, including ELL, which includes:

a. the number of staff employed using Targeted Aboriginal Education Funding,
Additional Funding and Special Education Funding and designated to work
with First Nation Students;

b. the proportion of the staff's time spent working directly with First Nation
Students; and '

c. the staff's duties and responsibilities;

ii) measures of success of First Nation Students through =ggregate results for
achievement including but not fimited to the following:

20



10/2725, 8:20 AM

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

15.0

15.1

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

1. attendance rates;

2. percentage of students who are an track or extending for reading,
writing and numeracy in grades 4 and 7 in the Foundations Skills
Assessment;

3. participation rates for the Foundations Skills Assessments;

4, grade to grade transition rates;

5. student retention rates;

6. graduation and six-year graduation rates;

7. proportion of students awarded a BC School Completion Certificate;

8. Six-year completion {graduation} rate for studemts in an ARernate

program;

9. pgrades 10to 12 math course participation rates,

10. data related to assessments required for graduation purposes and other
supports for successful transition to post-secondary education; and

11. number of First Nation Students eligible to move on to post-secondary
education.

The Board and First Nation will share two Nominal Rall student counts {September 30 &
February 28) with the Ministry each School Year, The Board and HRFN will meet the week before
the Sept. 30 submission deadline to cross reference student enrgliment lists.

The Board will share with the First Nation its annuai report to the Ministry on the spending of all
First Nation Student Transportation Funding received and the amount of funding spent, which
information should be clearly stated in the Board’s audited financial statements for their
verification;

Subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, upon request, the Board
will provide First Nation community-specific student data to the First Nation to help inform them
about their Students’ progress, and to inform discussions between the First Nation and the
Board on supporting those Students.

The First Nation may initiate the implementation of any formalized option agreed upon by FNESC
and British Columbia, which may include an Information Sharing Protoceol between the Board
and the First Nation, to facilitate the provision and use of available First Nation student-specific
data. SDE0 Indigenous Education Centre has developed a release of information form.

COMMUNICATION

The Parties recognize the need for excellent communication and will establish agreed upon
means far the successful and effective implementation of this Agreement, which may include,
but not be fimited to, regularized meetings and contzct through newsletters and other
correspondence, as appropriate.

21



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

is5.2

153

16.0

161

le6.2

16.3

164

16.5

HREFN LEA 2025_to be signed doex - Google Docs

The Parties recognize the need for effective and ongoing communication with Parenis in the
support of their child’s successful education experience, and the Parties will advise Parents of
opportunities for input and involvement in their child's education, such as course selection
dates, reporting periods, parent-teacher interviews, apglication deadlines and procedures for
post-secondary education, etc.

The Parties will encourage functions and meetings, such as parent-teacher interviews, to be held
in the community.

TUITION PAYMENT

For eligible First Nation Students on the Nominal Roll attending Schools operated by the Board
on September 30th, and for whom the First Nation has received Tuition Funding from indigenous
Services Canada, the First Nation will pay to the Board the Tuition Fees amount in accordance
with this section 16.0 of this Agreement.

The Board will not charge the First Mation a greater amount for the First Nation Students
attending a School within the School District than the First Nation Student Rate (as it pertains to

tuition)

For greater certainty, the Parties agree that the First Nation is respensible only for Tuition
Funding received from Indigenous Services for the Tuition Fees of the First Nation’s Students
according to the approved First Nations Student Rate and approved Nominal Roll. Unless
otherwise agreed, the First Nation will not be responsible for paying any amounts for which it
does not receive funding frem Indigenous Services, or which exceeds the First Nation Student

Rate.

The Parties agree the September 30th Nominal Roll enrolment will be verified by:
a) the First Nation; and
b} the Secretary-Treasurer of the Board.

The Parties agree that Tuition Fees payabie for each School Year shall be paid by the First Nation
to the Board according to the following schedule and based upon the September 30™ Nominal

Roll figures:

a) 70% based on the previous year’s eligible Tuition Feesand Nominal Rollon or before
December 15;

b) 30% of the current year’s eligible Tuition Fees less {or, in addition to) the difference between
the previous and current year’s eligible Tuition Fees on or before March 31;

¢} Year - end reconciliation on or before June 30th.

22



10/27/25,8:20 AM

16.6

16.7

i16.8

16.9

17.0

171

17.2

HREN LEA 2025_tov be signed.docx - Google Docs

In the event of a School closure due to a labour dispute, the Tuition Fees will be equitably
-adjusted-by-the agreemeni-of the Parties and-returned-to the First Nation for the benefit of the
First Nation’s students in the same manner as oceurs with the Ministry of Education.

The Parties agree that tuition fees under this Agreement wil! be paid in installments as set out in
seclion 16.5 herein, except where:

a) a First Nation Student has withdrawn from school during the month ending one month
before the payment due date; or

b) =3 First Nation Student has transferred to a First Nation School or a BC Independent School
during the month ending one month before the payment due date,

in which case, any further Tuition Fees for that First Nation Student will be held by the First
Nation 1o be used for Tuitiun Fees Lo the First Nation School or BC Independent School that the
First Nation Siudent has transferred 1o, or 1o support the contihued education of the First Nation
Student in support of their potential re-entry into the pubiic system, First Nation School or BC
independent Schoal in the future.

The Parties agree that additional services or programs not contemplated by this Agreement may
be provided by the Board through agreement by the Parties on the terms and costs for such
service(s} and/or program(s).

Where Indigenous Services Canada is late in providing Tuition Funding to the First Nation,

a} the First Nation will notify the Board of the delay in receiving IS funding: and

b) the Board will not charge interest to the First Nation on any amount that is outstanding due
to Indigenous Services’ late provision of funding.

IMPLEMENTATION, MONITORING, REVIEW: LEA OVERSIGHT TEAM

The Parties hereby establish a joint LEA Oversight Team responsible for overseeing the
implementation of this Agreement, with representation from the First Nation, the School
District, and each school at which a First Nation Student attends.

The Parties agree to jointly develop terms of reference for the LEA Oversight Team before the
implementation of this LEA agreement {September 8, 2020), which will bacome a Schedule to
this Agreement, and which will include:

a) the membership of the LEA Oversight Team;

b) the roles and responsibilities of the LEA Oversight Team (e.g. managing the implementation

of this Agreement, including delegating tasks as appropriate);

23



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

18.0

18.1

18.2

18.3

19.0

2.1

15.2

20.0

20.1

HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

c) a requirement that the LEA Oversight Team develop and finalize an LEA implementation plan
for approval by the Parties within a specified timeframe and which, upon approval, will be
appended to this Agreement;

d} the relationship of the LEA Oversight Team with the Indigenous Education Council; and

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If there is a dispute between the Parties with respect to any matter arising from this
Agreement or relating to the interpretation and application of this Agreement, the Parties agree
to use their best efforts to resolve such disputes in a reasanable and timely manner and in good

faith.

Where there is a dispute between the Parties, the Parties agree they will attempt to use any and
all face-to-face means to resolve the dispute at the point closest to which the dispute first arises
before referring the dispute to senior [evel representatives.

The Parties agree to endeavour to resolve issues or disputes that may arise about this
Agreement, or its implementation, in a manner that fosters an improved, ongoing and respectful
relationship between the Board and the First Nation.

TERM & AMENDMENT

The term of this Agreement will be 4 years, beginning October 7, 2025 and ending October 7,
2029, unless the Parties agree, in writing, 10:

a) terminate the Agreement; or
b) renew the Agreement, with or without amendmenits.

Each Party may suggest improvements and amendments to this Agreement and both Parties
agree to discuss such suggestions in good faith with a view to better achieving the purposes of
this Agreement.

NOTICES

Any notice, ctaim, consent, waiver, statement, or other documents or payment that either party
may require or may desire to give, may be transmitted by mail, fax or persanal delivery and will
be conclusively deemed validly given or delivered or received by the addressee, if delivered
personally on the date of delivery or, if mailed on the fifth business day after the mailing of the
same ih Canada by registered mail addressed or, if faxed with accompanying confirmation of

completed transmission:

24



10/27/25, 8:20 AM

21.0
211

21.2

21.3

214

HRFN LEA 2025_te be signed.docx - Google Docs

If to the First Nation:

Halfway River First Nation

16262 Rd 4
Wonowaon, BC
VOC 2NO

If to the Board:

The Secretary-Treasurer

Schoal District No. 60 {Peace River North)
10112 - 105 Avenue

Fort St John, BC

V1454

GENERAL

This Agreaement will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws in force in the
Province of British Columbia.

This Agreement will be to the benefit of, and binding upen, the Partles hereto and their
respective successors and assigns,

This Agreement supersedes any and all previous local education agreements between the
Parties.

The Parties acknowledge that:

a) nothing in this Agreement, or in the negotiation of this Agreement, or in any prior document
leading to this Agreement, in any way defines ar amends, recognizes, affirms, or denies the
existence of, or in any way limits Aboriginal or treaty rights of the First Nation; and

b) this Agreement is without prejudice to the rights of the Parties and the First Nation with
respect to such matters,

25



10427125, 12:01 P'M HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Geogle Does

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

SIGNED on behalf of the HALFWAY RIVER FIRST NATION by its duly authorized officers:

==

Chief - Darlene Hunter

O X -

Coungiilor = Charmaine Hunter uncifor — Joyce Audit
Councillor — Lori Wéeley Councillor - William Field

in theypresence of:

TN

Witn%ﬁe@on Joseph, Band Manager

SIGNED on behalf of the SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 - BOARD OF EDUCATION

Witness - Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent / CEO

Chairperson —Helen Gilbert, Board of Trustees, Board Chair

Secretary-Treasurer —Angela Telford

26



10427125, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS
1.0 DEFINITIONS
The following definitions apply to the Agreement:

“Aboriginal Education Council” means a counci established by a board of education or school district,
comprised primarily of representatives from First Nations within the school district, to provide advice to
improve outcomes for Abariginal students.

“Adaptations” are teaching and assessment strategies especially designed to accommodate a student’s
needs so he or she can achieve the learning outcomes of the subject or course and to demonstrate
mastery of concepts. Essentially, adaptations are “best practice” in teaching. A student working on
learning outcomes of any grade or course level may be supported through use of adaptations.

“Adult Dogwood” means an adult high school diploma is the British Columbia Aduit Graduation Diploma
(BCAGD) for adult learners {18 and older) who want to take courses in order to complete high school and
obtain their adult high school diploma.

"Assessment Dashboard” means an electronic assessment record of a student’s progress both in the
current year and yearend achlevement year to year Data includes: [iteracy levels, numeracy
achievermnent, grades, attendance and behaviour infractions.

“Attendance Protocol” means an attendance procedure carried out at the schools in the District, which
outlines the recording of attendance of students and the approach to sxcused and unexcused absences
with the overaii purpose of encouraging strong attendance necessary for success in schools.

“BC Public S5chool” or “BC Public School(s)” means all public schools in British Columbia providing
kindergarten to grade 12 education, but does not inciude BC Independent Schools or First Nation
Schools.

“BoardfAuthority Authorized Courses” are courses offered by BC Public Schools to respond to the local
needs of the schools and their communities while providing choice and flexibility for students, according
to requirements set by the Ministry of Education.

“BRFN” s 3 recognized acronym for Blueberry River First Nations.
“Chiild in Care” means a First Nation chiid for whom the Direcitor of Chiid \Weifare is the soie guardian,
and the Public Guardlan and Trustee manages the child's estate.

“Dogwood Certificate or Diploma” means the British Columbia Certificate of Graduation that is awarded
by the Minister to a student upon successful completion of the provincial graduation requirements, as
set out in the provincial Graduation Program and, for greater clarity, does not include an Adult Dogwood.

"Early Leaver Prevention Plan” means a plan of student supports, services or accommodations

devefaped and implemented, where parental consent has been provided, in @ manner consistent with
the Attendance Protocol and with the purpose of re-engaging the First Nation Student and

27



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HEFN LEA 2025_to be signed docx - Google Docs

re-establishing strong attendance. The Plan applies where a First Nation Student misses more than 10%
of scheduled classes in a2 month and will address academic, behavioural, attendance and any other
relevant issues and will include interventions to be undertaken by the school, First Nation and parents.

"Early School Leavers” means:

e any First Nation Student ieaving school prior to the completion of Grade 12, including students
who are expelled; or

e 2 student who has 15 unexcused absences in a month, has missed 75% in any school month, or
has missed 40% of a term or semester;

where the Early Leaver Prevention Plan has been unsuccessful and the First Nation Student has no
Individual Education Plan.

“Evergreen {School Completion) Certificate” is a school-leaving certificate intended to celebrate success
in learning that is not recognized in a Certificate of Graduation {Dogwood Diploma). [t is used to
recognize the accomplishments of students with special needs and an Individual Education Plan, who
have met the goals of their education program, other than graduation (and not all students with special
needs should be in an Evergreen Certificate Program.) The Evergreen Certificate is not a graduation
credential; students who receive an Evergreen have not graduated. The Evergreen represents the
completion of personal learning goals but does not represent graduation.

“First Nation Student Rate” means the education costs for a First Nation Student attending a BC Public
school in a school district, as calculated annually by the Ministry in consultation with FNESC and Canada
{formerly the “First Nations Billing Rate”).

“First Nation Student” means a student who is ordinarily resident on a reserve of the First Nation in
British Columbia and is eligible to be on the Nominal Roll.

“First Nation Transportation Fund” means the First Nation Student Transportation Fund established by
Canada, British Columbia and FNESC to fund the transportation of First Nation Students to BC Public
Schools, commencing in the 2019/2C School Year.

“HRFN” means Halfway River First Nation.
“Indigenous Services, 1S, ISC or DISC” means the federal department of indigenous Services.

“Individual Education Plan {IEP)” means a documented plan developed for a student that describes
individualized goals, Adaptations, Modifications, and the services to be pravided, and includes measures
for tracking achievement, as required by the provincial Individual Education Plan Order M638/95 and
addressed in the Ministry of Education Special Education Services: A Manual of Policies, Procedures and
Guidelines (March 2011), as may be amended from time to time.

“Individual Learning Plan (ILP)” is an education plan developed by the School-Based Team for a student
wha does not meet the criteria for an IEP but is considered to be a Vulnerable Student.

“Informed Consent” refers to the provision of approval or assent, particularly and especially after

28



10/27/25, 8:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

thoughtful consideration, and after receiving all relevant information that is not unreasonably withheld.
In the context of assessment and placement and education referrals; informed Consent requires that the
Parent be informed of;

the assessment procedures to be carried out;
the Information to be collected;

the intervention that may take place;

the likely benefits and risks; and

the option to refuse or withdraw at any time,

and be provided meaningful opportunity to provide input into the assessment and placement or
education referral decision.

“Minister” means the Minister of Education {BC).

“Miinistry” means the Minisiry of Education {BC),

"Madifications” means instructional and assessmentrelated decisions made to accommedate a
student’s educational needs that consist of individualized learning goals and outcomes, which are
different than learning outcomes of a course or subject. Modifications should be considered for those
students whose special needs are such that they are unable to access the curriculum {i.e., students with
limited awareness of their surroundings, students with fragile mental/physical health, students medicaily
and cognitively/multiply chailenged.)

“Nominal Roll" means the annual census of eligible students living on-reserve and attending
elementary/secondary school as of September 30.

“Operating Grants Manual” means the provincial manual, as amended from time to time, that sets out
the provincial funding formuia that comprises a student hasic aliocation plus supplementary grants to
determine school district allocations.

"Ordinarily resident on-reserve™ means that the student usually lives at a civic address on reserve, is a
child in joint custody who lives on reserve most of the time, or is staying on reserve and has no usual
home eisewhere. Students continue to be considered ordinarily resident on reserve if they return to live
on reserve with their parents, guardians or maintainers during the year, even if they live elsewhera while
attending school or working at a summer job. {In this context, reserves are deemed to include all land set
aside by the federal government for the use and occupancy of an Indian band, along with 2ll other
Crown lands which are recognized by Canada as settlement lands of the Indian band of which the
student is a resident.

“Parent” means, in respect of a student:
e the guardian of the person of the student;
e the person legally entitled to custedy of the student; or
e the person who usually has the care and control of the student;

“Schaol” or 5chool{s)” means and includes any school operated by the Board.

29



10/27/25, B:20 AM HRFN LEA 2025_to be signed.docx - Google Docs

“School Act” means the British Columbia Schoo! Act, RSBC 1996, Chapter 412,

1sehool District" or “District” means the area constituted under the School Act as School District # ;

#School Year” means the period beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30 the following year.

“§DE0” is a recognized acrenym for School District No. 60

"Yargeted Aboriginal Education Funding” means the funding provided to the School District by the
Ministry of Education targeted for school age students of Aboriginai ancestry participating in Aboriginal
Education Programs and Services offered by public schools, which must be spent on the provisian of
these programs and services,

*Tuition Fees” means the Tuition Funding per student received from Indigenous Services by the First
Nation, which the First Nation pays to the Board for the purchase of education services, including any
mandatory School Fees, for students in the School District at the rate set out by the Ministry of

Education in its fiscal framework for a given School Year.

“Tuition Funding” means the Tuition Funding received by the First Nation from Indigenous Services
Canada for the education of First Nation Students in the School District who are on the Nominal Roll,
which is invoiced for by the Board as per the First Nation Student Rates established by the Ministry
annually and as determined by the snapshot date of September 30",

wyulnerable Student” means a student who has been identified as finding learning more challenging
based on the following factors: not meeting learning outcomes, significant absence from school, not
transitioning to the next grade, failing courses, behaviour issues, undet suspension, not at grade level

and/or is a child in care.

30



- ——

-———




School District 60 Al Guidelines

1. Protect Privacy
¢ Don’t include personally identifiable information in Al prompts.
2. Follow School Instructions

o Use Al according to your teacher’s and school’s instructions.
o Reference your use of Al & maintain academic integrity

3. Respect the School Code of Conduct

e Use Al as you would act in class - be honest, respectful, and responsible.
4. Use Approved Al Tools

e Only use Al tools that the school district has approved.
5. Check for Mistakes and Bias

e Remember, Al can sometimes be wrong or unfair. Double-check information.
6. Respect Indigenous Knowledge

¢ Al may not show Indigenous oral traditions correctly. Be careful and respectful.
7. Support Inclusion

e Use Al to help all students learn and make sure everyone feels included.



School District 60
Al Guidelines

g ) Protect Privacy
n Don’t include personally identifiable
information in Al prompts.
\/ Follow School Instructions
Use Al according to your teacher’s and
school’s instructions. Reference your use of Al
& maintain academic integrity.

X
(3

Respect the School Code of Conduct

Use Al as you would act in class — be honest,
respectful, and responsible.

Use Approved Al Tools

Only use Al tools that the school district
has approved.

Check for Mistakes and Bias

Remember, Al can sometimes be wrong or
unfair. Double-check information.

Respect Indigenous Knowledge

Al may not show Indigenous oral traditions
correctly. Be careful and respectful.

Support Inclusion

Use Al to help all students learn and make
sure everyone feels included.

fit

Respect - Compassion - Honesty - Responsibility - Relationships



2025-2026 Community Coaches

for BOARD APPROVAL - December 15, 2025

School | Department Name of Coach Coaching
Hudson’s Hope Aaron Lepine Basketball
Roger Gunderson Basketball

Dr. Kearney Chris Ennis Basketball
Bradley Moskalyk Basketball

*approved by Superintendent by email on
December 10, 2025




GZ0Z ‘¢ Jaqiuarop jrews Aq Juspusiiiadng Aq pascudde |

(syuspms QL- 0} 1)

aouslauns [B10H uu| sAeq :[210H spo Joiunp
Aeiw| ye0 g uisiwefeq preuoq g yselop ajoH (suspms z) - 0149)
TSICSUOdS JOUOBTL sAog Jounp
BIpRgET Uef |[Jeg - s[Io Jounp (swuepnis
sBuluwa|4 usasyg axelg - sAog sounr AR AV NIS)
pueE|Is|0oA 9oy ¢ Aejen) ueiy - sAog Jolueg sAog lojueg
(juated) Jaddouy ey ¢ staddouy e - SHID) JoIUSS (suepnis
SBUDETD Zl - 2Ll apein)
21UYIBJA0H 1SOAN YHON -Jusweuwing] [[eqieyseq dng JS|mMoH sng jooyos | suield epuels) g9 G 1aquanag SHID) Jojuag

(suoneao| g sauosadeyd ‘Yoe0d JO aweu)

:spodg Jo uonduasaq
(saanoe Jo uonduosap g sajep ‘sauosodeyd Jo saueu) lwea| jopels)
ISaNRIARIY Jo uoiduassq uonedodsues) uoneunsaqg [9ARI] JO S9)Be(Q ' AjAoy/suodeg

AYVANODIG F0Vid HLYUON JOOIUW
TVAQNddV Q¥V08 404

9Z02-5202 Sdi™1l d131d / S1LH0dS 12IM1SsIg-40-LNO
(HLYON ¥3AIY 32V3d) 09 "ON LOIY¥1SIAd TOOHIS




zIpege uep [Jeg - sIg Jowunp

S8YIBO0Y) 9coz (sjuepmis 01~ 01 49)
Aepuooag 961090y &oULl 4 sng [ooyas | ebilosg aoulg ‘¥ L-¢| Adenigeq spIS Jojunp
Aa|diys alle[eA + YseIop 3|00 sIosuCds 1aDea |
sBuLwa|4-UaAllS )R g TLDBET)
'ABRINIES [SARIY UYL BWIOY SLI0D pue ABPlid [DARIL |[IM SWIBd| 9202 (swepnig 2| - 011D}
shoqg Jowunf 10 sauoz Builsoy si 38310 UOME(] sng [0oyas | yealn uosme( ‘y1z-g Aenige4 shog Jojunp
ag.l ‘e1ieH
gL -sIosuodg Jaijgea]
PUEB|[2[D2N GOy ¢ AB[RD) LeAY - sAog JDIUDS (sjuspnis
Jayosney Z) - 2L 1)
usg g (uared) Jaddouy e1suy B siaddouyy yiep - SHID Jojuag shog loluag
EETEE ) {sjuspnis
sAoq 1o} JusweuInay 9202 ZL - ZLiLL epeln)
sybieH abajjo pue wes) spIb 1o} ppol 4 1€ JusweuIna| sng jooyag | ebioes soulg ‘vg-cz AMenuer SJID) JolusS
agq. 19104 (syuspnys
{SBIOW 2107 105000 Jaoea] ZL - 2L 19)
PUB|IB|Do 4O @ ABIEL) UBAY - sADg JOIUDS shog Joluag
(ualed) staddouy| eisuy 9 siaddouy yiep - SUID) JDjUBS {swopnis
SIOIETT 9202 ZlL - 2Ll apein)
JaweuIno] [|egidyseq uoluowp3l jooyas YybiH uaje) 1583 sng jooyas uguowpy ‘L1-g Alenuer SpID) Jolusg
ueuIpues :|810H
[ooINDI UAper
HeIS 1sIq [GoUoS
elpeqeT] uer [1eg - spig Jojunr (swepms g- 0} I9)
sBujwwal4 uaasis axery - sAog Jowunr SIS JoIUNf
S3UTETY 9zoz |  (swepmig gl - 0119)
Jusweuwingl ||leqiaysey |ooyog Aepuonag ablosn) eauld sng [ooyos | eBioan sould ‘01L-6 Alenuer shog lounp




GZ :Sjuapn)s Jo JaquinN
fleqdwed
uelg 'Bxy3 391y 1eyima] epen iseuoladey?) jo sweN

yaaln
du] asesyyesH snousbipu| sng |ooyos uosmed 2N §Z0Z ‘5l Aenuep slaslen
(suoneoo] @ saucladeys ‘yoeo9 JO SWEeL)
:s0dg Jo uonduassqg
(saianoe jo uonduosap B sajep ‘saucisdeyd Jo saueu) ‘wea| japelin)
:saIAlloy jo uoduasag | uonepodsuesp uoljeul}sag [9ARd] jO sajeq 9 Alanoyjsyodg

TYNOLLVNYILN| ANV SHITAVY

8202-6Z0Z SdI¥L 41314 / SLY0dS 1o1¥1SIg-40-1n0
(HLYON ¥3AIN 39V3d) 09 "ON LIIMLSIA TOOHDS

- TO0OHOS
TYAOYddV QdvO8 HO4







2025-2026 Posts of Responsibility

for BOARD APPROVAL - December 15, 2025

School /| Department FTE Teacher Name Subject [ Area of PoR

Dr. Kearney 0.5 Dwayne Watson Athletic Director
(effective date December 9", 2025)



TUSI||0IUD patdalold U0 paseq S1UaIgm 198png A

H21d 9Z/STOT A4 Sy Op-SIYL

s10N

0% VLS PRS-
i 7l ¢ ¥66'BITS SLTTRTS 1B 07 5241359 Jo moRE2|ddy
F66'807%- LFE'9TI8- (asuadx) snmaaay 3a) Bunesadqy
T6€ T00°LRE FePaRaTLTE BagEydan,g [eedey poe sasuadyy Suneaadp ejeg
Tead gAnonp ATRA SOSRYSINA  %Th zl UEDF LOLBLYE 000ESLS (BunBa2d(y) EasHysang [wrde]y
$T9'TTS 08 ESHO6FLTE sasuadry Sunesadg (e30],
Tead yFnou Ama sesEyamg Wi M 9p LE SPTESE LI STI09E saddng poe 62214135
%6°0E SLEGTI'SLS STCOETETS $]j3U3g PUE EHIB[ES [630],
WRWURE  %9g (40 %4287 £6Z°6Z9FL SYEBIT Y spauag 3adojdury
235 0] JIBIS |[Iv S “ATENUES UT BIETR 1rB)S £og] 2000 ye1s Aumo
107 N PAXBW AT G4 PUEB | “ddD ‘pRicadxa Uep 1amo
%I THFS09 096'9 61 SILIRIES [EJOL
pejoadxa e oyl ARuBYs ORI OO %06 o1 %6 1E LSV IFET 0SPOrL (£D0L) smnsqng
HOEIL Oy EiTad 1 Sl Tk LFEFEET LEF196 S[RUOISSYOL] DUy
papadxa e ma]  UOE fAR] %E ZE GEZI'G6R'6 05L°I6T°E g woddng
paoadua e} a0 40 0l %15 SV 18T L 9600881 SIUEISISEY [BUCIEONP
YeLL UG %UIE 1 WS IF GFOLLETS GREREFT sjedioung-amp, pue sedoug
AEJUG  %0E o7 500 BAOOTS'EE IPE'BELE SIALDBI)
EILIE|ES
suar) eue|dxyg IJIUOTA] papuadxa ypiapng [Enuuy  Suipuadg B0y asuadxy dunesadgy
Jog  1eEpng oo Assopagaag
9TUST0T
%Ll LGETEL'9EE R anuzaay Bunetadg) B0,
HIBLL U() %alE Gl a0l 819°8L6 $  SRLEST % AN VT
% € GLL ESL'SRE TZ8'BLLOT § Juaunenlpy 7 220599 anuaasy Sunesadgy (B0,
pmadxa wir Tl % LY 00009E £ 9TS'TLI € 153I31U]
e IEN {040k T 51 $Z0E JAQUISAON JO PUS 10] SAJEI JSA10U]
1021 SLMS BUe juy snousSipu B SEUy %0t Zlfol WOER 8L6°TkL § F15'19 g SRuEY
uv—.N..— EO...M..E.NU »MHEEUM— m@m&m:umm.ﬁ JEEM MHWU_.ﬂmﬁ— mmﬁ_.—_OE
read g noyBnong o4zt zZ1 %298 O0YNET 5 &5CRGI % aNUAAZY SNOIUR|[SOSTIA
SALTEA SSPITY O S[N1YS PUE “Spastoad souBImsy] “Spuny W.LT pus
IOLNST(T S OIUT 2100 1EY) SPUT] STUOSUR|[30SIL SO Sy ),
IO A[TeS 10 |[B] 98] PIATAAl %4001 01 %00 S5ET15 g - g s8m[rg A1ed pig <] SUapmg ELRqY
TPRATIRSI PUBR pEMOAUT S1 URULiEd U0 pe)E (i Smowy
HAEILUQ  WOE €1l %0 E 19F P56 3 LISTPIE g 3394 IRV
Pajoadxa uelp o) APUATS  G40E ot %897 000°0TL § SEO'EST $ UOTHR 230SHO
MPEILUD %Ik A %l 1t 6157171 $  £09°08 s LVS - SR RIOWACI]
IR U() %40E ol %40 62 R19'GLE $ $8L'ERT ¥ anuaAay YT
poradxa YT zl S0 1E EFTEIPE 5 [8£°79%0R % SJUEIN) UDKEINDY JO ANSTully
UEL) 552 SR JUSWUI|OIUE S [BIIIE 01 1STUPE 01 Past |
Tue 520T TBa 1 8 USIfE o) LS | ADSTULRY] TUCL SJUSAE ]
sucnyBuedxy L syjaopy PRAIID JeHpng Enuuy  Huipuads ey anuaaFy donesadoy
papzadyy  jo g 122png jo o e jasg

9TSTOT

SZ0T ‘0 2qudaoy 01 SZOT “[ Aaf - 1a0day (wausagg Juesado

09#% LIS [00YDS



BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District No. 60
(Peace River North)

5000 Health & Safety
5004.2 Child Abuse Reporting Protocols

Adopted:
Revised:
Reviewed:

Reference: BC School Act
Child, Family and Community Service Act (Part 3) Child Protection
Child, Family and Community Services Act
BC handbook for Action on Child Abuse and Neglect
Reporting Child Abuse in BC

Policy

When a School District No. 60 employee has reasonable grounds to suspect that a student has
been abused—or if a student discloses and makes an allegation, the employee shall follow the
guidelines below and all required district and legal procedures. This applies whether the
suspected abuser is a community member or another School District employee.

Guidelines/Principles:

Staff will be guided by the Child, Family and Community Services Act and the procedures
described in the British Columbia Handbook for Action on Child Abuse and Neglect, recognizing
Child Abuse and Neglect can take physical, sexual, or emotional forms, or may take the form of
parental neglect. The descriptions of physical abuse, emotional abuse, emotional harm, sexual
abuse, sexual exploitation, and neglect are contained in the B.C Handbook for Action on Child
Abuse and Neglect (2017).

Reporting Procedures
1. If the suspected abuser is a parent, caregiver, student, or adult in the community:

1.1 Immediate Danger
Call 911 for police assistance

1.2 Report to MCFD
Contact the Ministry of Children and Family Development (MCFD):
e Working Hours (Mon—Fri, 8:30 a.m.—4:30 p.m.):
o Fort St. John Office: 250-263-0121

Page 1 of 2


https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96412_03#division_d2e3457
https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/00_96046_01
https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/00_96046_01
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/public-safety-and-emergency-services/public-safety/protecting-children/childabusepreventionhandbook_serviceprovider.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/safety/public-safety/protecting-children/reporting-child-abuse

o Enquiry BC: 1-800-663-7867 (ask for local MCFD office)
o After Hours (Evenings, Weekends, Holidays):
o MCFD: 1-800-663-9122
o Helpline for Children: 310-1234 (no area code needed)
O
1.3 Internal Notification
Inform the Administrative Officer/Supervisor that a report has been filed.

If the suspected abuser is a School District No. 60 employee:
2.1 Report to MCFD

2.2 Initial Reporting
Report to the Administrative Officer/Supervisor.
o |If the alleged perpetrator is the Administrative Officer/Supervisor, report directly to
the Superintendent of Schools or designate.

2.3 Escalation
The Administrative Officer/Supervisor will report to the Superintendent or designate and
provide all required and relevant information.

2.4 Superintendent Responsibilities
o Notify relevant employee organizations or associations
e Investigate to determine if suspension is warranted (School Act)
e Notify parents/guardians of affected students
e Notify RCMP if criminal investigation is warranted
o ltis required by law that administrative officer/supervisors must cooperate
with police in criminal investigations
o Notify MCFD if student protection is required

Reminders

e Do not communicate with the suspected abuser. This is the responsibility of MCFD
and/or police.

e Schools must provide a private space for MCFD interviews.

e Only MCFD and police are responsible for investigations and informing families.

e Schools must not release information to other individuals or agencies.

Annual Review
This policy and procedure will be reviewed annually with staff annually

Page 2 of 2



=

=

Page 1 of 2


https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96412_03#division_d2e3457
https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/00_96046_01%23section1

Page 2 of 2



Page 1 of 2


https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/00_96046_01
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/public-safety-and-emergency-services/public-safety/protecting-children/child_abuse_prevention_handbook-general_public_booklet.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/public-safety-and-emergency-services/public-safety/protecting-children/childabusepreventionhandbook_serviceprovider.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/safety/public-safety/protecting-children/reporting-child-abuse

Page 2 of 2



BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District No. 60
(Peace River North)

5000 Health & Safety
5013 Emergency Health Response — AEDs and Naloxone Kits

Adopted:
Revised:
Reviewed:

Reference: School Act - Section 88(1) and 168(2)(t)
Support Services for Schools Order

Policy

A timely and effective response to unexpected health emergencies is essential to ensuring a
safe school environment. Unexpected health emergency incidents can occur without warning
and require immediate action to improve survival outcomes by providing critical intervention
before emergency responders arrive. Ensuring that our schools are equipped and prepared to
respond supports student and staff safety at school, enabling school communities to focus on
learning and well-being while increasing confidence and security.

Guidelines/Principles:

Automated external defibrillators (AEDs) and naloxone kits need to be made accessible at all
schools.

e Tools need to be clearly marked with standardized signage to support easy identification
and use

e Routine inspections need to be carried out to ensure functionality and monitor expiry dates

o Barrier-free access will be provided to accommodate diverse user needs

e Tools will be presented in a non-stigmatizing manner to encourage comfortable and
equitable use

Page 1 of 1


https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m149_89.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m149_89.pdf

Fort St. John OPS Site - Monthly Visits

(Data from March 18 2025 to November 28, 2025)

30

25

20

15

10

—Total Visits — Average Temperature

March April May June July August September  October November
3'/(.

northehrn health

the northern way of caring




	2025-12-15 REGULAR AGENDA
	Declaration of Conflict of Interest
	The following trustees declared a “conflict of interest”:
	Election of Board Officers
	UElection of Board Chair
	UElection of Vice-Chair
	A tie was declared between Madeleine Lehmann and Nicole Gilliss.
	The Board Chair declared Nicole Gilliss the Vice-Chair.
	UElection of Provincial Councilor Rep
	UElection of Alternate Provincial Councilor Rep
	UElection of BCPSEA Rep
	The Board Chair called for nominations by secret ballot for BCPSEA Rep.
	Helen Gilbert, Ida Campbell, Nicole Gilliss, David Scott-Moncrieff, Bill Snow and Thomas Whitton have declared a “conflict of interest”
	UElection of Alternate BCPSEA Rep
	Helen Gilbert, Ida Campbell, Nicole Gilliss, David Scott-Moncrieff, Bill Snow and Thomas Whitton have declared a “conflict of interest”.
	The Board Chair declared Nicole Gilliss the Alternate BCPSEA Rep.

	R 0 Board of Trustees - Action Item List (2025_26) - Regular
	R 3.1 Local Education Agreement 2025 - Halfway River First Nation - Copy
	R 3.1 Local Education Agreement 2025 - Halfway River First Nation
	R 8.1 E2 SD60 AI Guidelines
	R 8.1 E2 SD60 AI Guidelines
	R 8.1 E3 2025-2026 Community Coaches for Board Approval_December 15, 2025
	R 8.1 E4 Out of District Field Trips
	R 8.1 E5 2025-2026 PoR's for Board Approval_December 15, 2025
	R 8.2 Financial Update to November 30, 2025
	R 9.3a 5004.2 Child Abuse Reporting Protocols
	R 9.3b 5004 Child Abuse
	R 9.3c 5004.1 Reporting of Suspected Child Abuse & Neglect
	R 9.3d 5013 Emergency Health Response – AEDs and Naloxone Kits
	R 13.1 OPS Site Statistics - November 2025
	Slide Number 1


